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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

R.G. Barry Corporation is one of the world’s leading suppliers of com-
fort footwear for at- and around-the-home, controlling approximately
40% of the U.S. slipper market. The Company’s footwear products are
sold through traditional department stores, promotional department
stores, national chain department stores, discount stores, warehouse
clubs, drug chains, specialty catalogs and supermarkets. We also
export footwear for sale in France, the United Kingdom, Mexico,
Canada and other international markets.

The Company’s current footwear brands include Angel Treads®, Barry
Comfort®, Dearfoams®, EZfect®, Fargeot, Madye’s®, Royal
Comfort®, Snug Treds®, Soft Notes®, Sole™, Terrasoles™ and
Z1zi®. R.G. Barry Corporation also markets Liz Claiborne®,
Claiborne® and Villager® slippers under license granted by L.C.
Licensing, Inc.; NASCAR® slippers under licenses granted by the
National Association For Stock Car Auto Racing, Inc., Dale Earnhardt,
Inc., Rusty Wallace, Inc., Penske Racing South, Inc., JG Motorsports,
Inc. and Redline Sports Marketing, Inc.; and Mushrooms® slippers
under a license granted by AmAsia International LTD.
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Dear Shareholder:

2003 ended as a difficult and disappointing year for R.G. Barry Corporation. After more than three years of work
implementing strategies with the single underlying goal of restoring our Company to appropriate levels of perform-
ance, we failed to achieve a return to profitability. Our failure to achieve our goals has frustrated each R.G. Barry
stakeholder and put tremendous strain on the Company's credibility and financial resources.

Since the end of 2003, the Company's senior management and board of directors have taken dramatic steps to
address the obvious need for change in our business and to maximize the Company's potential for future success.
We have developed a business model that we think will reduce operating costs and expenses and ultimately restore
us to profitability. We have employed an expert in leading corporate change as our interim President and Chief
Executive Officer. And, we have obtained new financing.

2003 REsSULTS

As was reported in our third quarter 2003 letter to shareholders, we believed our continuing operations were on-
track to be modestly profitable for the year, providing we experienced a normal Christmas selling season. A sudden
negative turn in pre-Christmas retail sales caused many of our customers to cancel planned orders in November.
Although we experienced a generally good sell-through at retail in the final days of the holiday selling season,

fourth quarter order cancella- : e e st s
tions dashed our expectations -  FiNanciaLRecar
R.G. Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

of modest profitability in our [

continuing operations and 203" | 2002 [ 2001
placed the Company in a very ! {in thousands of dollars, except per share data)
difficult cash and inventory Net sales | s123137 | $ro0x $129,381
position entering 2004, Earnings (loss) before income taxes, continuing operations (9,283) f (12,318) 3,021
Net eamings {loss) from continuing operations (19,396) (8,150} (1,826)
For the year, net sales from Net eamings (loss) from discontinued operations - (2310) (3,730) (894)
continuing operations Net earnings (loss) (21,706) (11,880) 832 |
increased 3.5 percent over last Earnings (loss) per share, basic & diluted {$2.21) ($1.23) $0.10
year to $123.1 million and our | Working capita 25,846 40,9827 55,205
net loss was $21.7 million, or Net shareholders’ equity 25,387 47,188 60,385
$2.21 loss per share. The 2003 | Bock value per share §2.58 8481 $6.44
loss was comprised of $19.4 Return on beginning shareholders' equity (46.0%) (19.7%) 1.6%
million, or $1.97 loss per Pretax retum on net sales {7.5%) {10.3%) 2.3%
share, from continuing opera- |-Current assels 44379 61,068 69.676
’ Current liabilties 18533 | 20141 | 1447

tions, and $2.3 million, or
$0.24 loss per share, from dis-
continued operations.

** Fiscal year includes 53 weeks

Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

In the fourth quarter, net sales were down $1.4 million to $43.7 million, primarily as a result of those reorders that
fell short of plan and higher than expected order cancellations from retailers late in the fourth quarter. Our net loss
was $16.5 million, or $1.68 loss per share, comprised of losses of $15.5 million, or $1.58 loss per share, from con-
tinuing operations, and approximately $1.0 million, or $0.10 loss per share, from discontinued operations.

ONE-TIME CHARGES OVERSHADOW IMPROVEMENT
Approximately $19.6 million in non-cash charges overshadowed improvement in the Company's 2003 results from
continuing operations. These charges include:

1) The establishment of a $13.8 million reserve against deferred tax assets that resulted from cumulative
losses incurred over the past several years. In the future, we hope to recognize the tax benefit of these
deferrals by reducing our reported tax expense should the Company's profits improve so that the deferrals
become realizable as tax deductions;

2) The taking of restructuring and asset impairment charges of $2.6 million primarily related to the write-
down of goodwill on our French subsidiary, Fargeot; and

3) The write-down of $1.2 million in excess finished goods inventory and about $2 million in raw mater-
ials inventory associated with restructuring actions planned for 2004.

Additionally, we turned over responsibility for the marketing and sale of our slipper products in Europe to a local
marketing company in January 2003. The goal of this action was to allow for the sale of our non-Fargeot products
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in Western Europe without maintaining costly sales, warehousing and distribution operations. We subsequently
closed our Wales distribution center and our Paris sales office.

We also completed the sale of the principal assets of our thermal products business in June 2003. This operating
segment, which incurred losses of $2.3 million in 2003 and $3.7 million in 2002, has been discontinued.

NEW PRESIDENT/CEO

Thomas M. Von Lehman assumed the duties of interim President and CEO of R.G. Barry Corporation on March
10, 2004, from Gordon Zacks, who made a decision to retire from his operational roles. Gordon is continuing his
50-year career with R.G. Barry as a Director and Senior Chairman of the Board.

Tom had been working with the Company for several months on financing and business planning issues prior to
assuming his new role. A seasoned corporate renewal specialist, he was a principal in the consuiting and invest-
ment banking firm, The Meridian Group. Tom brings to the roles of President and CEO extensive senior manage-
ment and turnaround experience. In a very short time, he has led the Company through some difficult and complex
financial and strategic issues.

FINANCING AGREEMENT

The operating losses reported for the full year put tremendous strain on our relationship with our primary lenders
and prompted us to seek alternate sources of financing. On March 29, 2004, we entered into a new three-year, $35
million factoring and financing agreement with The CIT Group/Commercial Services. We have retired all indebt-
edness to our former lending bank and an institutional lender. CIT has an excellent reputation of providing finan-
cial services for the apparel and footwear industries, and we believe that our arrangement will provide sufficient
liquidity and resources to fund our operations through 2004.

BUSINESS MODEL CHANGING
We began implementing our newly developed business model in March 2004. The key components of this plan
include:

1) Refocusing our at- and around-the-home footwear business on a core customer base that represents about
70 percent of our 2003 revenues;

2) Narrowing our customer base and product assortment;

3) Streamlining our management structure and reducing our selling, general and administrative costs to a
lower level that is consistent with our simplified business model. For example, two layers of management
recently were eliminated between the corporate president and sales management team;

4) Closing all R.G. Barry manufacturing facilities by the end of 2004;

5) Expanding our use of third party contract manufacturers outside North America to supply all of our future
product needs, and adding to our skilled sourcing and quality control staff in Hong Kong;

6) Lowering our total corporate employment from approximately 1,900 in March 2004, to about 200
when our plan is fully implemented. In January of this year, we eliminated about 150 manufacturing jobs
at our Nuevo Laredo, Mexico, factory, and we have continued reductions in March with the elimination of
about 30 jobs in our Columbus and San Antonio offices;

7) Reducing costs further through the closure of our operations support office in San Antonio by the end of
2004; and

8) Cutting year-end 2004 finished goods inventory levels by approximately four-to-five million pairs from
year-end 2003 levels.

MAINTAINING PRODUCT LEADERSHIP

In recent years, the Company has invested heavily in product design and development efforts with a goal of main-
taining its leadership in the at- and around-the-home footwear market. We believe the result of this investment is
evident in each line in the Dearfoams® family of brands. Products like our patented Terrasoles® footwear clearly
show our commitment to market leadership. Although we plan to reduce the breadth of our overall product offering
in 2004, we intend to continue product development and marketing efforts at a level appropriate to the planned size
of our business.

GOING CONCERN MODIFICATION

Another issue we face this year is the decision of our independent auditors to modify their report on the Company's
2003 financial statements with a going concern uncertainty paragraph. They based their concern about the ability
of R.G. Barry to continue as a going concern upon recurring losses from operations over the past several years, the
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discretionary nature of our new financing agreement with CIT and the Company's failure to meet a number of
covenants in its prior revolving credit agreement.

Although we recognize there are many risks in the kinds of dramatic changes we are making to our business, we
believe these risks are manageable. We think the CIT financing agreement provides the Company with adequate
liquidity for 2004. Add in our great brand names, quality products, well-developed customer relatlonshlps and pro-
ductive, loyal people, and you can see why we are optimistic about the Company's future.

LoOKING TOWARD TOMORROW

R.G. Barry can once again become a great company, and that is our goal. We do not, however, want to sugarcoat
what lies ahead. 2004 will be a difficult, unprofitable transition year as we lay the foundation for a return to prof-
itability in 2005. The implementation of our business plan is expected to. result in significant costs this year in the
form of severance payments, plant closing costs and non-cash asset write-downs. In the first quarter, we expect to
report approximately $6 million in impairment charges and $1.2 million in severance payments related to the clos-
ing of our manufacturing operations. Although we do not expect a profit in 2004, operational improvements should
become evident as the year progresses in the form of lower costs and SG&A expenses.

We want to thank each of you for your patience, interest and support as we embark on this journey of restoration.

i | Lo Von Beblrra—

Gordon Zacks Thomas M. Von Lehman
Senior Chairman of the Board President
Chief Executive Officer

""SAFE HARBOR' STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995:

The statements in this letter, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements, are based upon informa-
tion available to the Company on the date of publication. Our forward-looking statements inherently involve risks and uncer-
tainties that could cause actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those anticipated by our forward-looking state-
ments. Factors that would cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, the ability of the Company to
close its manyfacturing facilities in Mexico in accordance with plan without incurring substantial unplanned cost or delays or
experiencing unforeseen labor difficulties; the ability of the Company to substantially increase its sourcing of products from
outside North America to replace the products previously manufactured in its own plants in Mexico without incurring substan-
tial unplanned cost and without negatively impacting delivery times or product quality; the continuing willingness of CIT to
Jfund the Company's financing requirements under CIT's discretionary factoring and financing arrangement with the Company;
the Company's ability to reduce its inventory levels in accordance with its plan, the continued demand for the Company's prod-
ucts by its customers and the continuing willingness of its customers and suppliers to support the Company as it implements its
new business plan; the ability of the Company generally to successfully implement its new business plan; the unexpected loss of
key management; and the ability of competitors to take market share from the Company. Other risks to the Company's business
are detailed in our previous press releases, shareholder communications and Securities Exchange Act filings including our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2004 (included as part of this annual report document).
Except as required by applicable law, we do not undertake to update the forward-looking statements contained in this letter to
reflect new information that becomes available after the date hereof.
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GENERAL COUNSEL
Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP, Columbus, Ohio

AUDITORS
KPMG LLP, Columbus, Ohio

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT
The Bank of New York, New York, New York

COMMON STOCK

Listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Trading
Symbol: RGB

Wall Street Journal Listing: BarryRG

LOCATIONS

CORPORATE OFFICE

13405 Yarmouth Road N.W,,
Pickerington, Ohio 43147

MAILING ADDRESS
P.O. Box 129,
Columbus, Ohio 43216

Telephone 614.864.6400
Web Site: www.rgbarry.com

ADMINISTRATIVE & SALES OFFICES
Bentonville, Arkansas

Hong Kong

Mexico City

New York City

San Antonio, Texas

Thiviers, France

MANUFACTURING PLANTS
Ciudad Acufia, Mexico
Nuevo Laredo, Mexico
Thiviers, France
Zacatecas, Mexico

DISTRIBUTION CENTERS
Laredo, Texas

Nuevo Laredo, Mexico
San Angelo, Texas

TRADEMARKS

The following are the principal trademarks of the
Company registered with or registration applied for
with the United States Department of Commerce and
Trademark Office or with the appropriate foreign regis-
tration authority: Angel Treads®, Barry Comfort®,
Dearfoams®, EZfeet®, Fargeot, Madye’s®, Royal
Comfort®, Snug Treds®, Soft Notes®, Solé ™,
Terrasoles™ and Zizi®.

R.G. Barry Corporation also makes and sells Liz
Claiborne®, Claiborne® and Villager® slippers under
license granted by L.C. Licensing, Inc.; NASCAR®
slippers under licenses granted by the National

Association For Stock Car Auto Racing, Inc., Dale
Earnhardt, Inc., Rusty Wallace, Inc., Penske Racing
South, Inc., JG Motorsports, Inc. and Redline Sports
Marketing, Inc.; and Mushrooms® slippers under a
license granted by AmAsia International LTD.

SUBSIDIARIES
The Dearfoams Company
Barry Comfort de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Barry de Acufia, S.A. de C.V.
Barry de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Barry de Zacatecas, S.A. de C.V.
Barry Distribution Center de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Escapade, S.A.
Fargeot et Compagnie, S.A.
Procesadora de Nuevo Laredo, S.A. de C.V.
R.G.B., Inc.
R.G. Barry International, Inc.
RGB Technology, Inc. (formerly Vesture Corporation)

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

R.G. Barry Corporation is an equal opportunity
employer, offering the opportunity of equal employment
to all individuals without regard to their race, color,
religion, sex, national origin or age.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

For information regarding shareholder accounts, call
The Bank of New York at 800.524.4458 or write them
at Shareholder Relations Department — [11W, P.O. Box
11258, Church Street Station, New York, NY 10286.

Stock certificates for transfer and address change
should be sent to The Bank of New York, Receive and
Deliver Department — 11W, P.O. Box 11002, Church
Street Station, New York, NY 10286.

FORMS 10-K, 10-Q & 8-K

The Company’s annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission, Form 10-K, its quarterly
reports, Form 10-Q, and other current reports, Form 8-
K, are available without charge at the Company Web
site at <www.rgbarry.com> or may be cbtained by writ-
ing to the Company at Investor Relations, R.G. Barry
Corporation, PO. Box 129, Columbus, Ohio 43216.

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The annual shareholders’ meeting will be held at 11:00
a.m. EDT Thursday, May 27, 2004, at R.G. Barry
Corporation, 13405 Yarmouth Road N.W., Pickerington,
Ohio 43147.
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equity, as of the last business day of the Registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter: $40,923,652 as
of June 27, 2003.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the Registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest
practicable date: 9,836,602 common shares, $1.00 par value, as of April 1, 2004.

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
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PARTI

Item 1. Business.

General

R. G. Barry Corporation (“R. G. Barry” or the “Company”) was incorporated under Ohio law in
1984. R. G. Barry’s principal executive offices are located at 13405 Yarmouth Road N.W., Pickerington,
Ohio 43147, and its telephone number is (614) 864-6400. R. G. Barry’s common shares are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “RGB.”

R. G. Barry maintains an Internet website at www.rgbarry.com (this uniform resource locator, or
URL, is an inactive textual reference only and is not intended to incorporate R. G. Barry’s website into
this Annual Report on Form 10-K). R. G. Barry makes available free of charge on or through its website,
its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), as soon as reasonably practicable after
R. G. Barry electronically files such material with, or furnishes it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”).

R. G. Barry and its subsidiaries, The Dearfoams Company, R. G. B., Inc., Barry de Mexico, S. A.
de C.V., Barry de Acuila, S. A. de C.V., Barry de Zacatecas, S. A. de C.V., Procesadora de Nuevo
Laredo, S. A. de C.V., Barry Comfort de Mexico, S. A. de C.V., Barry Distribution Center de Mexico,

S. A. de C.V., ThermaStor Technologies, Ltd., R. G. Barry (Texas), LP, R. G. Barry International, Inc.,
R. G. Barry Holdings, Inc., R. G. Barry (France) Holdings, Inc., Escapade, S.A., Fargeot et Compagnie,
S.A., and RGB Technology, Inc. (previously known as Vesture Corporation), manufacture and market
comfort footwear.

During the fiscal year ended January 3, 2004, the Company had two operating segments: the
Barry Comfort North America group, which includes at- and around-the-home comfort footwear products
manufactured and sold in North America; and the Barry Comfort Europe group, which includes at-and
around-the-home comfort footwear products sold in Europe and footwear products sold by Fargeot. In
addition, as discussed in greater detail immediately below, the Company discontinued operations of a
third operating segment — the Thermal group, which included thermal retention technology products — in
June 2003. Financial information about the Company’s two operating segments for the three years ended
January 3, 2004, is presented in Note (14) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which financial information is incorporated herein by this
reference.

On May 15, 2003, R. G. Barry announced an agreement to sell substantially all of the assets of
RGB Technology, Inc., its subsidiary formerly known as Vesture Corporation (“RGB Technology™), and
on June 18, 2003, RGB Technology closed the sale of those assets to a corporation, now known as
Vesture Corporation, headed by the co-founder and former chief executive officer of RGB Technology.
The sale was deemed effective as of March 29, 2003, The assets sold in the transaction included
furnishings, trade fixtures, equipment, raw material and finished products inventories, books and records
(including supplier and customer lists), RGB Technology’s rights under certain contracts and agreements,
patents and trademarks used by RGB Technology, and trade accounts receivable of RGB Technology
arising after March 29, 2003. RGB Technology retained its account receivables as of March 29, 2003.
As consideration, the purchaser Vesture Corporation assumed specified liabilities and obligations of RGB
Technology and paid RGB Technology a nominal sum of cash. As additional consideration for the assets
sold, Vesture Corporation agreed to pay to RGB Technology a royalty on Vesture Corporation’s net sales



through 2007 at varying royalty rates ranging from 10% to 4% on annual sales certain products in excess
of $4.5 million in the aggregate. With the disposal of RGB Technology’s business assets, the Company
discontinued the thermal products operating segment of its business.

In connection with the December 22, 2003 settlement of the pending litigation involving RGB
Technology’s MICROCORE® pizza delivery system, further described in Item 3 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, RGB Technology will now receive a royalty equal to 5% of Vesture Corporation’s net
sales through 2007 in excess of $500,000 in each year, but excluding Vesture Corporation’s sales of
products that utilize the patents involved in the settled litigation.

Most of the products sold by Vesture Corporation are expected to be those utilizing the patents
involved in the settled litigation, thus the amount of future royalties expected from Vesture Corporation
are not anticipated to be material to the operations of the Company.

Changes in the Barry Comfort North America Group Business

Two major drivers of change continue to directly impact the Company’s at- and around-the-home
comfort footwear business: globalization and retail consolidation. The confluence of these forces has
created a very competitive marketplace in which more and more suppliers are chasing fewer and fewer
customers. The Company’s focus for more than three years has been on moving the Company’s core
comfort footwear business from a slow-to-market, capacity-driven orientation, to a fast-to-market,
product-design, market-driven focus.

To achieve these goals, the Company has taken a number of actions to move all remaining U.S.
manufacturing operations to Company-operated plants in Mexico, reduce the total volume of slippers
manufactured by the Company and purchase more of its slippers from independent suppliers in China and
elsewhere. In 2003, the Company manufactured approximately 17.4 million pairs of slippers in its plants
in Mexico and sourced approximately 12.2 million pairs from contract manufacturers in China. In 2001
and 2002, the Company manufactured approximately 20.5 million pairs and 17.5 million pairs,
respectively, and sourced approximately 5.6 million pairs and 8.9 million pairs, respectively, from
contract manufacturers in China. The Company has been pursuing a strategy to produce in its own plants
in Mexico goods for which there is clearly-defined demand visibility from its customers, and to source
goods from China or elsewhere for which demand is not so well defined. The Company has recently
reconsidered this strategy and has decided to rely entirely on independent contract manufacturers
beginning in 2005, as discussed below.

The efforts of the Company to realign its manufacturing and sourcing operations is reflected in
various actions taken over the past three years. In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company announced a
decision to close its molding operations in Texas and to relocate those activities to Nuevo Laredo,
Mexico. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company announced a decision to close its Goldsboro, North
Carolina distribution center in early 2003. The Goldsboro facility was closed in the second guarter of
2003, and was sold in July 2003.

In January 2004, the Company discontinued slipper sewing operations at its Nuevo Laredo,
Mexico manufacturing facility. The Company also reduced sewing operations at its manufacturing plants
in Ciudad Acufia and Zacatecas, Mexico.

The Company has decided to close all of its manufacturing operations in Mexico by the end of
2004. Beginning in 2005, the Company expects to source all of its slipper requirements from independent
contract manufacturers in China and elsewhere. The Company believes that cost savings can be achieved
by sourcing all of its requirements from China and elsewhere, and that these cost savings should outweigh




the benefits to the Company of operating its own manufacturing facilities in Mexico. See “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation —
Liquidity and Capital Resources — 2004 Liquidity.”

Further information concerning the restructuring changes which occurred in the Barry Comfort
North America group in 2003 as well as in 2002 and 2001 is presented in Note (15) of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Changes in the Barry Comfort Europe Group Business

In January 2003, the Company announced that it had entered into a five-year licensing agreement
for the sales, marketing and sourcing of its soft washable slipper brands in Europe with a subsidiary of the
privately-held British comfort footwear and apparel firm GBR Limited.

The GBR Limited subsidiary has been granted a license to sell, source and distribute the
Company’s various brands of at- and around-the-home comfort footwear in all channels of distribution in
the United Kingdom, The Republic of Ireland, France and through selected customers in specific other
European countries in exchange for royalty payments on net sales. The Company closed its Wales
distribution center and Paris sales office during 2003 and transferred responsibility for its French sales
force and all selling, marketing and financial administration functions in Europe to the GBR Limited
subsidiary. The Company retained title to all of its patents and trademarks for products sold under the
licensing agreement.

The Company’s French subsidiary, Fargeot et Compagnie, S.A., is not part of the licensing
agreement with GBR Limited. The Company will continue to maintain and operate its Fargeot footwear
operations in southern France. Fargeot et Compagnie, S.A. generally serves smaller independent retailers
and export markets with a style of footwear that is different from the Company’s traditional comfort
footwear products. Fargeot’s products generally are not washable.

Further information concerning the restructuring changes which occurred in the Barry Comfort
Europe group in 2003 as well as in 2002 is presented in Note (15) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which information is incorporated
herein by this reference.

A)

Principal Products

The Company designs, manufactures, imports and markets comfort footwear for men, women and
children. The Company is in the business of responding to consumer demand for comfortable footwear
combined with attractive appearance. The Company believes it is the world’s largest manufacturer of
comfort footwear for at- and around-the-home.

Historically, the Company’s primary products have been foam-soled, soft, washable slippers for
men, women and children. The Company developed and introduced women’s Angel Treads*, the world’s
first foam-soled, soft, washable slipper, in 1947. Since that time, the Company has introduced additional
slipper-type brand lines for men, women and children designed to provide comfort, softness and
washability. These footwear products are sold, for the most part, under various brand names including

* Hereinafter denotes a trademark of the Company registered in the United States Department of
Commerce Patent and Trademark Office.




Angel Treads*, Barry Comfort™, Dearfoams*, Dearfoams* for Kids, Dearfoams* for Men, EZfeet*,
Fargeot, Madye’s*, Snug Treds*, Soft Notes*, Solé™, Terrasoles™ and ZiZi™. The Company also
markets slipper-type footwear under trademarks it licenses from third parties. See “Trademarks and
Licenses.”

The Company’s foam-soled footwear lines have fabric uppers made of washable materials,
including terry cloths, velours, fleeces, satins, and nylons, as well as uppers made of suede and other man-
made materials. Different brand lines are marketed for men, women and children with a variety of styles,
colors and ornamentation.

The marketing strategy for the Company’s slipper-type brand lines includes expanding counter
and floor space for these products by creating and marketing brand lines to different portions of the
consumer market. Retail prices for the Company’s footwear normally range from approximately $5 to
$30 per pair, depending on the style of footwear, type of retail outlet and retailer mark-up.

The Company believes that many consumers of its slippers are loyal to the Company’s brand
lines, usually own more than one pair of slippers and have a history of repeat purchases. Substantially all
of the slipper brand lines are displayed on a self-selection basis in see-through packaging at the point of
purchase and have appeal to the “impulse” buyer. The Company believes that many of the slippers are
purchased as gifts for others during the Christmas season, with approximately 70% of sales occurring in
the second half of the year compared to approximately 30% in the first half of the year.

Certain styles of slipper-type footwear have become standard in the Company’s brand lines and
are in demand year after year. For some of these styles, the most significant changes made in response to
fashion changes are in ornamentation, fabric and/or color. The Company often introduces new, updated
styles of slippers with a view toward enhancing the fashion appeal and freshness of its products. The
Company anticipates that it will continue to introduce new styles in future years in response to fashion
changes.

Most consumers of the Company’s footwear fit within a range of four to six sizes. This allows
the Company to carry lower levels of inventories in these slipper lines compared to other more traditional
footwear manufacturers.

Terrasoles,™ which the Company introduced in 2002, is a new footwear concept targeted to adult
women who currently wear old shoes at home. These women define comfort as firm, secure footing,
rather than the more traditional soft, yielding comfort of our slippers. Their lifestyles are such that they
are in and out of the house frequently, but they do not want to frequently change footwear, Terrasoles™
are offered as a fashion-appropriate, affordable alternative.

Marketing

The Company’s slipper-type brand lines are sold (i) to traditional department stores, including
promotional department stores, national chain department stores and specialty stores; (ii) through mass
merchandising channels of distribution such as discount stores, warehouse clubs, drug and variety chain
stores, and supermarkets; (iii) and to independent retail establishments. The Company markets these
products primarily through Company salespersons and, to a lesser extent, through independent sales
representatives. The Company does not finance its customers’ purchases, although return rights are
granted to some customers.

During the spring and autumn of each year, new designs and styles are presented to buyers
representing the Company’s retail customers at regularly scheduled showings. Company designers also
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produce new styles and designs throughout the year which are evaluated by the Company’s sales and
marketing personnel. In an effort to encourage market exposure to the Company’s products, buyers for
department stores and other large retail customers are invited to spring and autumn showings, and
Company salespersons regularly visit retail customers. The Company also regularly makes catalogs
available to its current and potential customers and periodically follows up with current and potential
customers by telephone. In addition, the Company participates in trade shows, both regionally and
nationally.

The Company maintains a sales office in New York City to which buyers for department stores
and other large retail customers make periodic visits. The Company rents showroom space during the
spring and autumn showings.

During the 2003 and 2002 Christmas selling seasons, the Company provided approximately 500
temporary merchandisers to service the retail selling floors of department stores and chain stores
nationally. The Company believes that this point-of-sale management of the retail selling floor, combined
with computerized automatic demand pull replenishment (EDI) systems the Company maintained with
the stores, put the Company in a position to optimize its comfort footwear business during the fourth
quarter.

Sales during the last six months of each year have historically been greater than during the first
six months. Consequently, the Company’s inventory is largest in early autumn in order to support the
retailers’ demand for the fall and Christmas selling seasons. The Company advertises principally in the
print media and its promotional efforts are often conducted in cooperation with customers. The
Company’s products are displayed at the retail-store level on a self-selection and gift-purchase basis.

The Company also markets its comfort footwear products in Canada, Mexico and several other
countries around the world. In 2003, the Company’s European net sales comprised approximately 8% of
its consolidated net sales, while the Company’s European, Mexican and Canadian net sales combined to
represent 9% of its consolidated net sales. In 2002, the Company’s European net sales comprised
approximately 8% of its consolidated net sales, while the Company’s European, Mexican and Canadian
net sales combined to represent 11% of its consolidated net sales. Financial information for the three
years ended January 3, 2004 for the geographic areas in which the Company operates is presented in Note
(14) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K, which financial information is incorporated herein by this reference.

As discussed above in the section captioned “Changes in the Barry Comfort Europe Group
Business,” in January 2003, the Company entered into a five-year licensing agreement with a subsidiary
of GBR Limited for the sale, marketing and sourcing of the Company’s soft washable slipper brands in all
channels of distribution in the United Kingdom, Ireland, France and through selected customers in
specific other European countries. Under this licensing agreement, the Company is entitled to receive
royalty payments on net sales. The Company had previously worked with GBR Limited through a
strategic alliance formed in 2000 to sell comfort footwear products in the United Kingdom and Ireland.
Under that distributorship-like arrangement, the Company had shifted responsibility for marketing,
selling, planning and financial administration for its products in the United Kingdom and Ireland to the
new company formed in the alliance.

Research and Development
Most of the Company’s research efforts relate to the design and consumer testing of new styles of

slipper-type footwear. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the amounts spent by the Company in connection
with the research and design of new products and the improvement or redesign of existing products were




approximately $3.0 million, $3.2 million and $3.1 million, respectively. Substantially all of the foregoing
activities were Company-sponsored. Approximately S0 Company employees are engaged full time in
research and product design.

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used by the Company in the manufacture of its products are textile
fabrics, threads, foams and other synthetic products. All are available from a wide range of suppliers.
The Company has experienced no difficulty in obtaining raw materials from suppliers and anticipates no
future difficulty.

Trademarks and Licenses

Approximately 94% of the Company’s sales are represented by products sold under trademarks
owned by the Company. The Company is the holder of many trademarks which identify its products,
including: Ange!l Treads*, Barry Comfort™, Dearfoams*, Dearfoams* for Kids, Dearfoams* for Men,
EZfeet*, Fargeot, Madye’s*, Snug Treds*, Soft Notes*, Solé™, Terrasoles™ and ZiZi™. The Company
believes that its products are identified by its trademarks and, thus, its trademarks are of significant value.
Each registered trademark has a duration of 20 years and is subject to an indefinite number of renewals
for a like period upon appropriate application. The Company intends to continue the use of each of its
trademarks and to renew each ofits reglstered trademarks.

The Company has also sold comfort footwear under various names as licensee under license
agreements with the owners of those names. In 2003, net sales undér the Liz Claiborne**, Claiborne**,
Villager** and NASCAR** labels pursuant to the license agreements described below represented
approximately 6% of the Company’s consolidated net sales. In 2002, net sales in total under the Liz
Claiborne**, Claiborne** and Villager** labels represented less than 3% of the Company’s consolidated
net sales. In 2001, net sales under the Liz Claiborne**, Claiborne**, and Villager** labels represented
less than 2% of the Company’s consolidated net sales.

In November 2000, R. G. Barry entered into a license agreement with a subsidiary of Liz
Claiborne, Inc. which allows R. G. Barry to manufacture and market slippers under the Liz Claiborne**,
Claiborne** and Villager** labels. R. G. Barry’s Liz Claiborne** Slippers for Women and Claiborne**
Slippers for Men are sold in upper-tier department stores and specialty retailers nationwide. Claibome**
slippers for men were introduced in Fall 2003. The Liz Claiborne** Slippers for Women initially have
been sold in the United States and Canada, although the licensor may, in its discretion, grant R. G. Barry
the right to distribute these slippers in other foreign countries. The initial term of the license agreement
continues through December 31, 2005, and is renewable for an additional five-year term if the net sales of
slippers bearing the Liz Claiborne**, Claiborne** and Villager** labels for the year immediately
preceding the last year of the initial term equal or exceed a specified level. The licensor has the right to
terminate the license agreement if minimum specified net sales levels are not achieved for two
consecutive years.

In May 2003, R. G. Barry announced that it had entered into licensing agreements regarding the
marketing, production and distribution of NASCAR** leisure footwear, robes and towel wraps. These
new Company products feature colorful images of eight drivers (Dale Earnhardt, Dale Earnhardt Jr., Jeff
Gordon, Jimmie Johnson, Bobby Labonte, Ryan Newman, Tony Stewart and Rusty Wallace), their cars

** Denotes a trademark of the licensor registered in the Unlted States Department of Commerce Patent
and Trademark Office.




and the NASCAR** logo. Products became available in stores nationwide in the fall of 2003. The
licensing agreements expire at the end of 2004, unless the Company negotiates renewals of the licenses.

The Company has also manufactured comfort footwear for customers which sell the footwear
under their own private labels. These sales represented less than 1% of the Company’s consolidated net
sales during 2003.

Significant Customers

The customers of the Company which accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s
consolidated net sales in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and J.C. Penney Company,
Inc., both Barry Comfort North America customers. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. accounted for approximately
25%, 26% and 22% of consolidated net sales in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. J. C. Penney
Company, Inc. accounted for approximately 11% of consolidated net sales in each of 2003 and 2002, and
10% in 2001. In addition, during 2003, Kohl’s Corporation accounted for approximately 10% of the
Company’s consolidated net sales.

Seasonality and Backlog of Orders

The Company’s backlogs of orders at the close of 2003 and 2002 were approximately $4.2
million and $3.0 million, respectively. Consistent with prior years, the Company anticipates that a large
percentage of the unfilled sales orders as of the end of 2003 will be filled during the current year.

The Company’s backlog of unfilled sales orders is often largest after the spring and autumn
showings of the Company. For example, the Company’s approximate backlog of unfilled sales orders
following the conclusion of such showings during the last two years was: August 2003: $45.7 million;
February 2003: $7.7 million; August 2002: $61 million; and February 2002: $9 million. The Company’s
approximate backlog of unfilled sales orders at the end of February 2004 was $4.2 million. As discussed
earlier, the Company’s backlog of unfilled sales orders reflects the seasonal nature of the Company’s
sales — approximately 68% of such sales occurred during the second half of 2003 as compared to
approximately 32% during the first half of 2003. The reduction in the Company’s backlog from August
2002 to August 2003 and from February 2002 to February 2003 is the result of changing customer
patterns in placing orders with the Company. Customers in recent years have trended toward placing
orders for products much closer to the time of expected delivery, whereas in prior years those orders may
have been placed earlier in the season.

Inventory

While some styles of the Company’s slipper-type brand lines change little from year to year, the
Company has also introduced, and intends to continue to introduce, new, updated styles in an effort to
enhance the comfort and fashion appeal of its products. As a result, the Company anticipates that some of
its slipper styles will continue to change from season to season, particularly in response to fashion
changes. Historically, the Company has had a limited and manageable exposure to obsolete inventory.
During the late summer months of 2003, the Company purchased approximately $6 million of inventory
from its Chinese suppliers which arrived in warehouses earlier than needed. While the Company
expected to sell that inventory during the fourth quarter, orders from customers of approximately $5
million did not materialize in late 2003 as had been planned. As a result, the Company ended 2003 with
finished goods inventory in excess of planned amounts. The Company has evaluated its inventory
position and taken appropriate write-downs during 2003, to value inventory at its expected net realizable
value.




As the Company shifts from a manufacturing-based business to a business that imports its goods
from third party contract suppliers from outside the United States, it expects to reduce inventory risks and
write-downs by acquiring inventory closer to its time of needed shipment to its customers, and more in
line with the visibility of customer demand.

Sourcing

The Company has a representative office in Hong Kong, which is responsible for procuring
outsourced products from the Far East. The Company current purchases goods from approximately 10
different contract manufacturers located in China. As the Company increases the volume of goods it
purchases from third party foreign contract manufacturers, it may be required to find additional
manufacturers to produce its goods. Although the Company’s experience with its contract manufacturers
in China has been acceptable in terms of reliability, delivery times and product quality, the Company’s
increasing reliance on third party contract manufacturers does create additional risk to the Company’s
business because it no longer controls the manufacturing of a substantial amount of its products or the
timing of cash requirements. This lack of control could impact the quality of its products and the
Company’s ability to deliver its products to customers on a timely basis. In addition, the substantial
increase in the volume of goods to be sourced from independent contract manufacturers in China
beginning in 2004 and 2005 is expected to result in additional responsibilities for the Company’s sourcing
operations, including its office in Hong Kong, which creates at least a short-term risk to the Company.
See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation - RISK FACTORS”

Competition

The Company operates in a relatively small segment of the footwear industry providing comfort
footwear for at- and around-the-home use. Although the Company also believes it is the world’s largest
marketer of comfort footwear for at- and around-the-home, it is a very small factor in the highly
competitive footwear industry. The Company competes primarily on the basis of the price, value, quality
and comfort of its products, service to its customers and its marketing expertise. The Company knows of
no reliabie published statistics which indicate its current relative position in the footwear or any other
industry or in the portion of the footwear industry providing comfort footwear for at- and around-the-
home. In recent years, the Company has faced growing competition from firms that purchase all of their
footwear products from third party manufacturers in China and other countries outside North America
where the cost of production is often lower than in North America, including Mexico.

Manufacturing, Sales and Distribution Facilities

The Company has four manufacturing facilities. The Company operates sewing plants in Ciudad
Acufia, and Zacatecas, Mexico and a slipper component cutting and sole molding plant in Nuevo Laredo,
Mexico. In January 2004, the Company discontinued slipper sewing operations in Nuevo Laredo.

The Company maintains a sales office in New York City and a sourcing representative office in
Hong Kong. As discussed above, the Company closed its sales office in Paris, France during 2003. The
Company also operates distribution centers in San Angelo and Laredo, Texas, and in Thiviers, France.
The Company opened a new distribution center in Nuevo Laredo, Mexico during the first half of 2002,
replacing the distribution center in Laredo, Texas with one closer to its manufacturing facilities. During
2003, the Company began using an independent third party warehouse and distribution service center
located on the West Coast. Distribution centers in Goldsboro, North Carolina and Rhymney, Gwent,
Wales were closed during the first half of 2003.
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As the Company continues to transform its operating model away from manufacturing, it is
eliminating its manufacturing facilities.

The Company’s principal manufacturing, sales and distribution facilities are described more fully
below under “Item 2. Properties.”

Fargeot et Compagnie, S.A.

The Company owns a 80% interest in a French company, Escapade, S.A., and its Fargeot et
Compagnie, S.A. subsidiary. Fargeot manufactures and distributes comfort slippers and casual shoes.
The principal market for its products is France and Western Europe.

Effect of Environmental Regulation
Compliance with federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of materials into the
environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has not had a material effect on
the Company’s capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. The Company believes that the

nature of its operations has little, if any, environmental impact. The Company, therefore, anticipates no
material capital expenditures for environmental control facilities for its current year or for the foreseeable

future.
Employees
At the close of 2003, the Company employed approximately 1,900 persons worldwide.

Item 2. Properties.

The Company owns its corporate headquarters and executive offices located at 13405 Yarmouth
Road N.W. in Pickerington, Ohio, containing approximately 55,000 square feet. The Company has
granted a mortgage on this facility to secure indebtedness to a lender. See “Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation — Liquidity and Capital
Resources — 2004 Liquidity.”

The Company leases space aggregating approximately 925,000 square feet at an approximate

aggregate annual rental of $3.0 million. The following table describes the Company’s principal leased
properties:
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Location

Empire State Building
New York City, N.Y.

2800 Loop 306
San Angelo, Texas

Distribution Center
San Angelo, Texas

Cesar Lopez de Lara
Ave.
Nuevo Laredo, Mexico

Ciudad Acufa
Industrial Park
Ciudad Acufia, Mexico

Manhattan Avenue
Nuevo Laredo, Mexico

Bob Bullock Loop
Laredo, Texas

Bob Bullock Loop
Laredo, Texas

Industrial Zone
Zacatecas, Mexico

Industrial Zone
Zacatecas, Mexico

8000 Interstate
Highway 10 West
San Antonio, Texas

West Gate Tower

7 Wing Hong Street
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
Hong Kong

) Net lease.

Use
Sales Office
Shipping, Distribution
Center

Shipping, Distribution
Center

Manufacturing, Office

Manufacturing, Office

Shipping, Distribution
Center

Warehouse, Office
Warehouse, Storage
Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Administrative Office

Sourcing
Representative Office

Approximate  Approximate Lease
Square Feet  Annual Rental Expires Renewals
1,700 § 44,000 2006  None
145,800 $160,000 (1) 2005 10 years
172,800 $495,000 (1) 2007 15 years
90,200 $300,000 (1)(2) 2004 None
64,700 $302,000 (1)(2) 2004 S years
144,000 $770,000 (1) 2012 None
165,000 $386,000 (1)(2) 2004 5 years
76,000 $191,000 (1) 2006 5 years
26,200 $ 48,000 (2) 2008  None
25,800 $ 58,000 (2) 2005 15 years
11,000 $252,000 (2) 2007  None
1,300 § 28,800 2004  None

) These facilities are being closed by the end of 2004.
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The Company believes that all of the buildings owned or leased by it are well maintained, in good
operating condition, and suitable for their present uses.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On December 22, 2003, RGB Technology, a subsidiary of R. G. Barry, settled the pending patent
litigation involving RGB Technology, Thermal Solutions, Inc. and CookTek, LLC. R. G. Barry
previously reported that RGB Technology was involved in a patent infringement lawsuit in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina (Civil Action No. 1:01CV01006) related to
RGB Technology’s MICROCORE® pizza delivery system. The terms of the settlement are confidential,
but the settlement resolves all areas of dispute between the parties and concludes the pending litigation.
As a part of this settlement, RGB Technology made a payment of $143,613 on February 2, 2004 and will
make a second payment in that amount on or before June 30, 2004.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders of R. G. Barry during the fourth
quarter of 2003.

Supplemental Item. Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The following table lists the names and ages of the executive officers of R. G. Barry as of April 1,
2004, the positions with R. G. Barry presently held by each executive officer and the business experience
of each executive officer during the past five years. Unless otherwise indicated, each individual has had
his principal occupation for more than five years. Executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board
of Directors subject, in the case of Messrs. Von Lehman, Galvis, Viren and Miller, to the contractual
rights of these individuals under employment agreements with the Company.

Position(s) Held with R. G. Barry and
Name Age Principal Occupation(s) for Past Five Years

Thomas M. Von Lehman 54 Interim President and Chief Executive Officer of R. G. Barry
since March 10, 2004; a principal of The Meridian Group, an
investment banking and corporate renewal consulting firm,
from 2001 to March 10, 2004; Vice President, Specialty
Chemicals of PPG Industries, Inc., a coatings, glass and
chemicals producer, 1996 to 2001

Christian Galvis 62 Executive Vice President - Operations since 1992, President -
Operations of Barry Comfort Group since 1998, Vice
President - Operations from 1991 to 1992, and a Director
since 1992, of R. G. Barry

Daniel D. Viren 57 Senior Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial Officer
since June 2000, Secretary and Treasurer since October 2000,
Senior Vice President - Administration from 1992 to July
1999, Assistant Secretary from 1994 to July 1999, and a
Director since 2001, of R. G. Barry; Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Metatec International, Inc.
(now known as Metatec, Inc.), an international information
distribution company, from July 1999 to June 2000
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Position(s) Held with R. G. Barry and

Name Age Principal Occupation(s) for Past Five Years
Donald G. Van Steyn 59 Vice President - Chief Information Officer since May 2000,

Vice President - Information Systems/Services from 1996 to
May 2000, and Director of Information Services from 1988 to
1996, of R. G. Barry

Harry F. Miller - 61 Vice President - Human Resources of R. G. Barry since 1993

-

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities. '

The common shares of R. G: Barry Corporation trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “RGB.” The table below provides the high, low and closing sales prices of the common shares as
reported on the New York Stock Exchange for the periods indicated.

Quarter High Low Close
Fiscal 2003 First $4.49 $2.10 $2.30
Second 4,76 2.25 4.60
Third 5.38 435 5.24
Fourth 6.39 4,18 4.40
Fiscal 2002 First $6.45 $5.52 $6.03
Second 6.20 485 528
Third 5.50 4.03 4.16
Fourth 4.84 3.06 4.10

No cash dividends were paid during 2003 or 2002. R. G. Barry has no current intention to pay
cash dividends. ‘

As of April 1, 2004, there were approximately 1,000 registered shareholders.
No disclosure is required under Item 701 of SEC Regulation S-K.

R. G. Barry did not purchase any of its common shares during 2003. R. G. Barry does not
currently have in effect a publicly announced repurchase plan or program.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides investors and others with information that
management believes to be necessary for an understanding of the Company’s financial condition, changes
in financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements, the notes to the consolidated financial statements and other information
contained in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Significant Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires that we make certain estimates. These estimates can
affect our reported revenues, expenses and results of operations, as well as the reported values of certain
of our assets and liabilities. Making estimates about the impact of future events has been a generally
accepted practice for nearly all companies in nearly all industries for many years. We make these
estimates after gathering as much information from as many resources, both internal and external to our
organization, as are available to us at the time. After reasonably assessing the conditions that exist at the
time, we make estimates and prepare our financial statements. We make these estimates in a consistent
manner from period to period, based upon historical trends and conditions, and after review and analysis
of current events and conditions. Management believes that these estimates reasonably reflect the current
assessment of the financial impact of events that may not become known with certainty until some time in
the future.

A summary of these accounting policies requiring management estimates follows:

(a) We recognize revenue when goods are shipped from our warehouse distribution points to
our customers and title passes. In certain circumstances, we have made arrangements with customers that
provide for returns, discounts, promotions and other incentives. At the time we recognize revenue, we
reduce our measurement of revenue by an estimated cost of future returns and retailer promotions and
incentives, and recognize a corresponding reduction in the amount of accounts receivable. As a result of
the rapidly changing retail environment and the ever-changing economic environment, it is possible that
returns ot retailer promotions and incentives could be different than anticipated. Accordingly, we have
identified this estimate as one requiring significant management judgment. We also estimate an amount
for potential doubtful accounts as a result of bad debts.

(b) We value inventories using the lower of cost or market method, based upon a standard
costing method. We evaluate our inventories for any impairment in realizable value in light of the prior
selling season, the economic environment, and our expectations for the upcoming selling seasons, and
provide appropriate write-downs under the circumstances. At the end of 2003, we estimated that the
standard cost valuation of our inventory exceeded the estimated net realizable value of that inventory by
$5.9 million, compared with a similar estimate made at the end of 2002 of $3.5 million.

© We make an assessment of the amount of income taxes that will become currently
payable or recoverable for the just concluded period and what deferred tax costs or benefits will become
realizable for income tax purposes in the future as a result of differences between results of operations as
reported in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and the
requirements of the increasingly complex income tax codes existing in the various jurisdictions where we
operate. In evaluating the future usability of our deferred tax assets, we are relying on our capacity for
. refund of federal income taxes due to our tax loss carry-forward position, and on projections of future
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profits. As a result of our cumulative losses, we have determined that it is uncertain when and whether
the deferred tax assets we have recognized on our consolidated balance sheet will have realizable value in
future years. Accordingly, we have fully reserved the value of those deferred tax assets in the amount of
$13.8 million as of the end of 2003. Should our profits improve in future years, such that those deferred
items become realizable as deductions in future years, we will recognize that benefit, by reducing our
reported tax expense in the future years, once their realization becomes assured. As of the end of 2003,
we had approximately $13.4 million of net operating loss carry-forwards, for US Federal income tax
purposes, and approximately $1.8 million net operating loss carry-forwards for Mexican income tax
purposes. The future use of tax carry-forwards is subject to applicable tax laws.

(d) We make an assessment of the ongoing future value of goodwill and other intangible
assets. During the second quarter of each year, we make an assessment, based upon fair value, to
determine whether there was any impairment in the value of those assets. As a consequence of the
changes occurring throughout the Company, management determined that it was appropriate to reassess
the value of these assets as of the end of 2003. We determined, through that reassessment, that the
goodwill value related to our acquisition of Fargeot was impaired. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
$2.3 million was recorded as of the end of 2003.

(e We make estimates of the future costs associated with restructuring plans related to
operational changes that we have announced. At the end of 2003, we had an accrued balance of $174
thousand relating to the estimated future costs of closing or reorganizing certain operations. At the end of
2002, we had an accrued balance of $1.7 million for similar restructuring and reorganization activities
underway at that time. Should the actual costs of these activities exceed these estimates, the excess costs
will be recognized in the following period. Conversely, should the costs of such restructuring be less than
the amounts estimated, future periods would benefit by that difference. (See also Note (15) of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional restructuring information.)

® In addition, there are various other accounting policies that also require some judgmental
input by management. We believe we have followed these policies consistently from year to year, period
to period. For an additional discussion of all of our significant accounting policies, the reader may refer
to Note (1) (a) through (u) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Actual results may vary
from these estimates as a result of activities after the period end estimates have been made, and these
subsequent activities will have either a positive or negative impact upon the results of operations in a
period subsequent to the period when we originally made the estimate.

Summary of our Results for 2003

2003 was a very difficult year. We did not meet many of our operating objectives, adding strain
to our financial resources.

In summary:

o Early in January 2003, we entered into a five-year licensing agreement for the sale and
marketing of our slipper products with a British footwear and apparel firm, and in mid-2003,
we ceased operating our Wales, U. K. distribution center and our Paris sales office. This
licensing agreement is intended to allow us to sell our soft washable footwear in Europe
without maintaining the costly sales organization and warehousing and distribution
operations we have had since the mid-1990’s.

¢ In June 2003, we completed the sale of the assets of our thermal products business, enabling
us to concentrate on our core at- and around-the-home comfort footwear business. The
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thermal products business was a segment of our business that for the past several years had
not operated profitably, incurring losses of $2.3 million in 2003 and $3.7 million in 2002.

We reached the conclusion of our three-year strategic plan in 2003 but fell short of our
desired level of operating performance. While the pre-tax operating loss from continuing
operations declined, we failed to resume profitable operations in 2003. Net sales from
continuing operations increased slightly from $119.0 million in 2002 to $123.1 million in
2003. Pre-tax losses from continuing operations decreased from $12.3 million in 2002 to
$9.3 million in 2003.

As a result of our cumulative losses, we determined that it is uncertain whether the deferred
tax assets we had recognized on our consolidated balance sheet will have realizable value in
future years. Accordingly, we have fully reserved the value of our deferred tax assets in the
amount of $13.8 million as of the end of 2003. Should our profits improve in future years,
such that those deferred items become realizable as deductions, we will recognize that tax
benefit, by reducing our reported tax expense in the future years. As of the end of 2003, we
had approximately $13.4 million of net operating loss carry-forwards, for US Federal income
tax purposes, and approximately $1.8 million net operating loss carry-forwards for Mexican
income tax purposes. Carry-forwards in the United States are available for up to twenty years
into the future, while carry-forwards in Mexico are available for up to ten years.

Largely as a result of the valuation allowance established for deferred tax assets, our after tax
loss increased to $21.7 million in 2003 from $11.9 million in 2002.

In mid-2003, finished goods from our Chinese suppliers arrived at our warehouses in advance
of our then current requirements. This added inventory exceeded our warehousing capacity.
We estimate that this early purchase resulted in our spending approximately $6 million earlier
in the year than planned. In addition, we experienced extra handling requirements in our
warehouses in the third and fourth quarters in order to manage and handle the extra inventory,
causing warehousing expenses to be higher than planned. The early purchase of inventory
increased ‘our borrowing requirements. In September 2003 we amended our revolving credit
agreement to increase the Company’s borrowing capacity from September 1, 2003 to
November 1, 2003 by an additional $4.0 million. We also agreed in September to include a
new covenant in the revolving credit agreement to require that we earn at least $1 (one dollar)
in consolidated net income (as defined in the agreement) for 2003 and subsequent years
(excluding in 2003 the losses resulting from our discontinued thermal products business and
asset sales).

Our inventory problems were compounded when product re-orders fell short of plan in late
2003 and we experienced higher than expected order cancellations. Consequently, we were
unable to reduce our inventory levels as we had planned. Partially as a result of the inventory
acquired in mid-2003 and partially due to re-orders that failed to materialize late in 2003 and
order cancellations, we ended 2003 with excessive inventory levels. The investment in this
inventory significantly reduced our liquidity.

In order to address our liquidity requirements, The Huntington National Bank
(“Huntington”), our lending bank, agreed in January to increase credit availability for the
month of January from $3.0 million to $9.0 million. We were advised by Huatington that we
should seek a second lender to share the credit facility with the bank. We agreed to grant to
Huntington and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (‘“Metropolitan™), the holder of a note
from the Company, a mortgage on our corporate headquarters to secure our borrowings under
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the revolving line of credit with Huntington and under the note from Metropolitan. We had
previously granted Huntington and Metropolitan a security interest in substantially all of our
other assets in 2002.

o [In early February, we were advised by Huntington that it believed that there had occurred a
non-curable default under the terms of the revolving credit agreement and that it would not

consider further amending our revolving credit agreement to increase the availability of
funding.

» In early March 2004, Huntington agreed to advance additional funds to us for March
operations. Huntington also permitted us to borrow funds against the cash surrender value of
life insurance policies insuring one of our key executives.

e As of the end of 2003, we failed to meet a number of covenants under our revolving credit
agreement. We did not meet the minimum tangible net worth test; the required one dollar of
net earnings; the minimum cash flow leverage test; and the interest coverage test. As a result
of our failure to meet the covenant tests under our revolving credit agreement, we were also
in violation of covenants in our note to Metropolitan Lite Insurance Company. In addition,
with the losses incurred for the year, we did not meet the minimum tangible net worth test of
the Metropolitan note.

¢ Inlate March 2004, we entered into a financing agreement with The CIT Group/Commercial
Services (“CIT”). Following the closing of that credit facility, we retired all outstanding
indebtedness with Huntington and Metropolitan. Management expects that this credit facility
with CIT will meet our planned cash requirements for the balance of 2004. See “Liquidity
and Capital Resources — 2004 Liquidity” below.

The results of our operations are discussed later in this narrative. A discussion of liquidity and
capital resources follows immediately.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have utilized numerous types of assets in the development, production, sourcing,
marketing, warehousing, distribution, and sale of our products. Most of our assets are current assets, such
as cash, trade receivables, inventory, and prepaid expenses, but we also have non-current assets, including
property, plant and equipment and goodwill.

At the end of 2003, current assets amounted to 72 percent of total assets, compared with 70
percent at the end of 2002. As of the end of 2003, we had $25.8 million in net working capital, made up
of $44.4 million in current assets, less $18.5 million in current liabilities. As of the end of 2002, we had
net working capital of $40.9 million, made up of $61.1 million in current assets, less $20.1 million in
current liabilities. The $15.1 million decline in net working capital from 2002 to 2003 is directly related
to the $21.7 million net loss we incurred in 2003.

We ended 2003 with $2.0 million in cash, $5.4 million in trade receivables net of allowances, and
$32.8 million in inventory. By comparison, at the end of 2002, we had $6.9 million in cash, $9.5 million
in net trade receivables, and $32.9 million in inventory. The decline in cash from 2002 to 2003 is mainly
due to the operating loss we incurred during 2003. The decrease in ending trade receivables primarily
reflects the lower level of net sales from continuing operations during the fourth quarter of 2003, $43.7
million, than during the fourth quarter of 2002, $45.2 million.
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Inventory management during the latter half of 2003 was a problem for us; finished goods from
our Chinese suppliers arrived at our warehouses in advance of our then current needs. As noted above,
this early acquisition of approximately $6 million of inventory increased our borrowing needs in
September and October of 2003. We ended 2003 with $32.8 million in inventory, net of write-downs of
$5.9 million; this compares with $32.9 million in inventory at the end of 2002, net of $3.5 million of
write-downs. Before write-downs, total inventory during 2003 increased by $2.2 million compared with
2002.

We had identified reduction of inventory as a major element of our three-year strategic plan for
2001 through 2003 ~ we attempted to accomplish this in part by repositioning ourselves from a company
with nearly 100 percent of our goods manufactured in our own factories in 1999 and prior years, to a
company where in 2002 and beyond, we expected a significant portion of our inventory to be produced by
contract manufacturers mainly located outside North America. This strategic change was designed to
allow us to respond faster to customers’ orders, to lower our investment in inventory, and to lower our
risks of inventory write-downs and obsolescence. Through 2002, we made substantial progress in
reducing our inventory levels. In 2003, we took a step backwards. During the late summer months of
2003, we purchased approximately $6 million in inventory from our Chinese suppliers which arrived in
our warehouses earlier than it was needed. While we expected to be able to sell that inventory in the
fourth quarter, orders from customers in the range of $5 million did not materialize in late 2003 as had
been planned. This left us with extra amounts of inventory as of the end of the year. We have evaluated
that inventory position and have taken appropriate write-downs during 2003, to value inventory at our
expected net realizable value. (See also the discussion above regarding critical accounting policies as
well as the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for more information regarding our
cash flows, and Note (2) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information
regarding our inventory.)

The logistics burden of physically managing the additional amount of imported inventory referred
to above caused us to incur added unplanned costs within our distribution system. We estimate that the
added costs of distribution related to managing extra amounts of inventory during the third and fourth
quarters of 2003 amounted to approximately $2 million. Not only did the added inventory negatively
impact our liquidity, but it also added unplanned expense to our distribution expenses.

Revolving Credit Agreement with Huntington National Bank

For many years, we have relied on revolving credit agreements to satisfy our seasonal working
capital liquidity needs. Until the end of 2003, our lending bank accommodated our borrowing
requirements and provided us with needed liquidity, occasionally modifying provisions of the loan
agreements as necessary. Before December 2002, our revolving credit facilities were unsecured.

On December 27, 2002, we entered into a $32 million Revolving Credit Agreement (“Revolver”)
with Huntington to refinance the previous revolving credit agreement. As a part of the Revolver, we
granted to Huntington and Metropolitan a security interest in substantially all of our assets other than real
estate to secure our obligations to Huntington under the Revolver and our obligations under our Note
Agreement dated July 5, 1994, as amended, with Metropolitan (“Metropolitan Loan Agreement”).

The Revolver was a three-year $32.0 million commitment from Huntington terminating on April
30, 2006. The Revolver originally contained periodic monthly commitment limitations ranging from $3
million in January, $12 million from February through April, $32 million from May through October, and
$27 million from November through December. The Revolver further limited total borrowings to the
lesser of: (a) the commitment limitations noted or (b) 80% of the Company’s eligible accounts receivable,
plus 40% of the Company eligible inventory, all as defined in the agreement. The Revolver also
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contained additional covenants, including financial covenants that required the Company to maintain
minimum consolidated tangible net worth, minimum coverage of interest expense beginning at the end of
the first quarter in fiscal 2004, and specified cash flow leverage ratios beginning at the end of fiscal 2003.
The Revolver required that that borrowings be reduced to zero for a period of 15 consecutive days during
2003 and for a period of 30 consecutive days during 2004 and 2005.

The Revolver was amended on a number of occasions in 2003 and during the first quarter of
2004:

e On March 31, 2003, the Revolver was amended to modify the commitment limitations noted
above from: (a) $12 million for February through April and $32 million for May through
October, to (b) $12 million from February through March and $32 million from April through
October, with the rest of the Revolver remaining unchanged.

*  On September 1, 2003, the Revolver was again amended to modify the commitment
limitations, reverting back to the original $12 million from February through April, and $32
million from May through October, and to provide a one-time additional commitment amount
of $4 million for the period from September 1, 2003 through November 1, 2003 only. In
addition, the September 2003 amendment modified the cash flow leverage test to make that
requirement less restrictive.

¢ On September 15, 2003, the Company agreed to add a covenant to the Revolver requiring that
consolidated net income for fiscal 2003 and thereafter be at [east one dollar, excluding in
2003 the loss incurred by our discontinued thermal products business and asset sales. In
exchange, the covenant requiring a minimum EBIDTA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization) for 2003 was removed.

e On January 22, 2004, the Revolver was again amended to increase the commitment limitation
in January 2004 from $3 million to $9 million. This fourth amendment provided Huntington
with total dominion over our cash resources, provided Huntington and Metropolitan with a
first mortgage lien on our office building in Ohio, increased the magnitude and timing of
reporting information required by Huntington, and required that we hire business consultants
to assist us in finding a second lender and to develop a new strategic operating model for our
business.

e On March 10, 2004, the Revolver was again amended for the fifth time, increasing the
availability for the month of March 2004 to $13.8 million. In addition, Huntington permitted
the Company to borrow $2.2 million against the cash surrender value of life insurance
policies owned by the Company on the life of a key executive.

The outstanding balances due under the Revolver ($2.0 million) and the Metropolitan Loan (§2.1
million) as of the end of 2003 were both classified on our consolidated balance sheet as current liabilities
as a result of their coming due during 2004,

As a result of the early acquisition of inventory in the third quarter of 2003, as discussed above,
we reached a peak of $36 million in borrowings outstanding under the Revolver for nearly a seven-week
period from mid-September through very late October 2003. This compares with $32 million in peak
outstanding borrowings for a four-week period during the same months of 2002. Moreover, during the
same seven-week period in 2003, we sought and received extended payment terms from our suppliers in
China as an additional means to contain borrowings to the Revolver to $36 million. By the early part of
November 2003, our cash flow had improved such that we had resumed payments to suppliers within
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their established terms of sale. Once we realized that shipments to customers in November and December
2003 would not achieve anticipated levels, we sought and received the fourth amendment to the Revolver
discussed above which allowed us to borrow up to a cumulative amount of $9 million during the month of
January 2004.

We failed to meet a number of the financial covenants in the Revolver as of the end of 2003. We
did not meet the minimum tangible net worth test; the required one dollar of consolidated net income; the
cash flow leverage test; and the interest coverage test. As a result of the failure to meet the covenant tests
under the Revolver, we were outside the compliance parameters of the Metropolitan Loan. In addition,
with the losses incurred for the year, the Company did not meet the minimum tangible net worth test of
the Metropolitan Loan.

On March 30, 2004, we retired all outstanding indebtedness under the Revolver and the
Metropolitan Loan Agreement from funds borrowed under the CIT Facility discussed below.

2004 Liquidity
CIT Credit Facility

On March 29, 2004, we entered into a new financing agreement (the “CIT Facility””) with CIT.
On March 30, 2004, we borrowed under the CIT Facility approximately $10.3 million to repay all
outstanding indebtedness under the Revolver and related charges, and the Revolver was terminated. In
addition, on that date, we borrowed approximately $2.3 million under the CIT Facility to repay all
outstanding indebtedness under the Metropolitan Loan Agreement and that agreement was terminated.

The CIT Facility provides us with advances in a maximum amount equal to the lesser of (i) $35
million or (i1) a Borrowing Base (as defined in the CIT Facility). The CIT Facility is a discretionary
facility which means that CIT is not contractually obligated to advance us funds. The Borrowing Base,
which is determined by CIT in its sole discretion, is determined on the basis of a number of factors,
including the amount of our eligible accounts receivable and the amount of our qualifying inventory,
subject to the right of CIT to establish reserves against availability as it deems necessary. The CIT
Facility also includes a $3 million subfacility for the issuance of letters of credit that is counted against
the maximum borrowing amount discussed above.

Our obligations under the CIT Facility are secured by a first priority lien and mortgage on
substantially all of our assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, intangibles, equipment,
intellectual property and real estate. In addition, we have granted to CIT a pledge of the stock in our U.S.
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The subsidiaries have guaranteed our indebtedness under the CIT Facility.

As part of the CIT Facility, we entered into a factoring agreement with CIT, under which CIT
will purchase accounts receivable that meet CIT’s eligibility requirements. The purchase price for the
accounts is the gross face amount of the accounts, less factoring fees (discussed below), discounts
available to our customers and other allowances.

The factoring agreement provides for a factoring fee equal to 0.50% of the gross face amount of
all accounts receivable factored by CIT, plus certain customary charges. For accounts outside the United
States, we will pay an additional factoring fee of 1% of the gross face amount. For each 30 day period
that an account exceeds 60 days unpaid, we must pay an additional fee of 0.25% of the gross face amount.
The mintmum factoring commission fee per year is $400,000 and if the fees paid throughout the year do
not meet this minimum, CIT will charge us for the difference. We also agreed to pay CIT’s expenses
incurred in connection with negotiation of the CIT Facility, as well as fees for preparing reports, wire
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transfers, setting up accounts and other administrative services. We are also responsible for any taxes on
sales of our products or on transactions between CIT and the Company. Upon entering into the CIT
Facility, we paid to CIT an initial facility set-up fee of $262,500.

Amounts outstanding under the CIT Facility bear interest at the prime rate as announced by
JPMorgan Chase Bank (“Prime Rate™) plus 1%. Interest is charged as of the last day of each month, and
any change in the Prime Rate will take effect the first month following the change in the Prime Rate.

The term of the CIT Facility is for a period of three years.
New Business Plan

With the assistance of experienced turnaround consultants, management developed a new
business model for the Company that we believe should significantly reduce operating costs by
simplifying our product offering and focusing our business on a core customer base that represented
approximately 70% of our 2003 revenues.

The key components of our new business plan and the actions we have already taken or expect to
take in 2004 are as follows:

e We have employed an experienced turnaround professional as the President and CEO on an
interim basis.

o We are streamlining our management structure and seeking to reduce our selling, general and
administrative costs to a lower level that is consistent with our simplified business model. This
process began in March 2004 with staff reductions in our headquarters in Ohio and at the
operations support office in San Antonio.

e We intend to reduce costs by closing our manufacturing facilities in Mexico by the end of 2004
and relying upon third party contract manufacturers in China and possibly other locations outside
North America to manufacture our products.

e  We will further reduce costs through the closure of our operations support office in San Antonio,
Texas by the end of 2004. The staff at this facility primarily support our operations in Mexico.
Some functions performed in the San Antonio office that will be maintained will be relocated to
our Columbus headquarters.

s  We expect to reduce our inventory levels by four to five million pair from the year-end 2003
levels.

Management concluded that the actions contemplated by the 2004 business plan were necessary
to materially reduce and eventually eliminate the operating losses incurred in 2002 and 2003. Because
the business plan will result in substantial changes in the way in which we have done business for many
years, we recognize that the implementation of the business plan carries business risks which are
discussed below in “RISK FACTORS.”

Implementation of the 2004 business plan is expected to result in significant costs in the form of
severance payments and asset write-downs. (See Note (19) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements.) In part due to these costs and write-downs, we do not expect to report an operating profit in
2004.
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2004 Liquidity

Based on the actions being taken in 2004 to create a lower-cost, more efficient business model, as
described above, and the new CIT Facility, management believes that there should be sufficient liquidity
and capital resources to fund our operations through the balance of fiscal 2004, including our anticipated
restructuring costs. Although our restructuring will involve cash outlays, the majority of the restructuring
costs to be incurred in 2004 are expected to be non-cash in nature and we expect that our plans to reduce
inventory should generate additional cash flow.

Our independent auditors have modified their report on our consolidated financial statements with
a going concern uncertainty paragraph based on our failure to meet a number of financial covenants in the
Revolver, our recurring losses from operations and our entering the CIT Facility which does not
contractually obligate CIT to advance funds to the Company. The independent auditors’ report notes that,
in their view, these matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. While we recognize that the implementation of our new business plan presents business risks, as
discussed in “RISK FACTORS” below, and we can give no assurance of the plan’s success, we believe
that these risks should be manageable and that, once implemented, the new business model gives the
Company a reasonable opportunity to return to profitability, although that will not occur in 2004.

Other Matters Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources

Traditionally, we have leased most of our operating facilities. On occasion, we have leased some
operating equipment as well. We periodically review our facilities to determine whether they will satisfy
projected operating needs for the foreseeable future.

All real and personal property leased by the Company is leased for varying term lengths, ranging
generally from three years to fifteen years, often with options for renewal. All leases are “operating
leases” and the obligations thereunder are recorded as rent expense during the periods of use and
occupancy. The future obligations under these lease commitments are discussed below under the caption
“Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” and in Note (6) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

We last paid cash dividends in 1981. We have no current plans to resume payment of cash
dividends or to acquire common shares for treasury. We anticipate continuing to use our cash resources
to finance operations and to fund the operating needs of the business.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As noted above, the Company has traditionally leased its facilities under operating lease
transactions. On occasion, we have also leased certain equipment utilizing operating leases. These
leasing arrangements allow us to pay for the facilities and equipment over the time that they are utilized,
rather than committing our resources initially to acquire the facilities or equipment. All leases have been
accounted for as operating leases, consistent with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 13, Accounting for Leases, as amended. Our future off-balance sheet non-
cancelable operating lease obligations are discussed in Note (6) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations for both long-term
obligations that appear on our consolidated balance sheet, as recognized in our consolidated financial
statements, and so-called “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements”, as discussed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements:
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Payments due by period (in thousands of dollars)

More
1 year 1-3 3-5 than 5
Total or Less years years years

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS — recognized on the books and records of the Company
Long-Term Debt, Current and Non-
Current Portions $ 6,010 $3,869 $1,981 $160 none

Capital Lease Obligations none

Other Long-Term Liabilities
reflected on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet of the Company * $14841 * * * *

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS - considered “off-balance sheet arrangements”

Operating Leases — see also Note (6) $ 13,162 § 3,495 $4,270 $ 3,401 $ 1,996
of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Purchase Obligations in the ordinary
course of business ** $ 4928 $4,928 none none none

* Other Long-Term Liabilities of the Company represent accrued cumulative future
obligations under our Associate Retirement Plan of $6,473, accrued cumulative future
obligations under our Supplemental Retirement Plan of $7,146 and accrued cumulative
future obligations from employee salary withholdings under our salary deferred
compensation plan of $1,222. The timing of future cash outflows related to these
obligations is not readily determinable, as it is totally dependent upon the timing of
Associate future retirements. Following the requirements under SFAS No. 87,
Accounting for Pensions, as amended, during 2003 and 2002 we have made a charge to
Other Comprehensive Income, to recognize the effect of actuarial assumptions and
market value changes as of the September 30, 2003 and 2002 evaluation dates. The
resultant effect has increased the aggregate liability under the Associate Retirement Plan
and the Supplemental Retirement Plan by $529 and $5,013, in 2003 and 2002,
respectively, with a corresponding charge to Other Comprehensive Income. In early
2004, we took action to effectively freeze pension benefits under the Associate
Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Retirement Plan effective as of April 1, 2004 and
requested permission from the Internal Revenue Service, which has not yet been granted,
to defer our 2003 contribution to the Associate Retirement Plan from 2004 to 2005. As a
result of the pension plan freeze, we expect to report a related curtailment loss of
approximately $1,108 in the first quarter of 2004.

** We acquire inventory and merchandise in the ordinary course of business, issuing both
purchase orders and letters of credit to acquire merchandise from suppliers.

Commitments in the ordinary course of business are included above as “off-balance sheet
arrangements”. There are no material unusual outstanding commitments other than in the
ordinary course of business.
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At times we have entered into foreign currency contracts, as noted in the discussion below under
the heading “Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and Results of Operation — Foreign
Currency Risk,” to hedge currency risk exposures that we have identified. Currency contracts utilized as
hedges are to be included as “off-balance sheet arrangements” as well; however, as of the end of 2003 and
2002, we had no foreign currency contracts outstanding.

Results of Operations
Discontinued Operations

The thermal products business was a segment of our business which, for the past several years,
we had not operated profitably.

In June 2003, we sold substantially all of our thermal products assets to a corporation formed by
investors headed by a co-founder and former chief executive officer of RGB Technology, Inc., our
subsidiary formerly known as Vesture Corporation (“RGB Technology™). The sale was deemed effective
as of March 29, 2003.

The assets sold to the buyer included furnishings, trade fixtures, equipment, inventories, raw
materials and finished products inventories, books and records (including supplier and customer lists),
RGB Technology’s rights under certain contracts and agreements, patents and trademarks used in the
business, and trade accounts receivable arising after March 29, 2003. We retained and collected the trade
accounts receivable of RGB Technology outstanding as of March 29, 2003. As part of the transaction, we
sold to the buyer certain patents owned by us and used in the thermal products business.

As additional consideration for the assets sold, the buyer assumed specified liabilities and
obligations. These included liabilities under specified contracts and agreements, obligations under
outstanding purchase orders for materials and supplies, customer orders, current liabilities, state and
federal income tax obligations, payroll and employee-related expenses and liabilities, accrued and unpaid
sales commissions, liabilities and obligations for warranty claims for product replacement or repair, and
certain other obligations and liabilities.

The consideration for the transaction was based upon a formula negotiated and agreed upon by
the parties. At the closing, the buyer assumed the liabilities and obligations discussed above and paid us
$76 thousand, less certain prorated tax liabilities. After the closing, the purchase price was adjusted to
take into account the results of operations of the business from March 29, 2003, through June 18, 2003.
As partial payment for amounts owing from the buyer to us, the buyer delivered to us a promissory note
in the principal amount of $334 thousand. The promissory note is due and payable in full on December 1,
2004. As of the end of 2003, we had fully reserved for the doubtful collection of this promissory note.

As additional consideration for the assets transferred, through the year 2007, the buyer has agreed
to pay us annual royalties based on a percentage of the buyer’s annual sales of certain products in excess
of specific thresholds.

See also discussion below under “Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and Results
of Operations — Legal Proceedings” and in “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

With the disposal of the thermal products related assets, we have discontinued the thermal
products business segment. The disposition of these assets represents a disposal of a business segment
under SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accordingly, the
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results of this operation have been classified as discontinued and financial data for all periods have been
reclassified to show discontinued operations.

Selected financial data relating to the discontinued operations, follow:

2003 2002 2001

Net sales 1,75 3.54 5,18
Gross profit (loss) 57 (1,654) 1,470
Selling, general and administrative 2,040 3,268 2,825

expense
Restructuring charges — 523 —
Interest expense (income) 104 143 (29
Loss on sale of certain assets

relating to discontinued

operations 223 — —
Loss from discontinued operations

before income tax (2,310) (5,588) (1,331)
Income tax benefit — 1,858 437

Loss from discontinued operations

net of income tax § (2,310) (3.730) (894)

See also Note (17) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which discusses our discontinued
thermal products business.

Restructuring Activities

During the past few years, we have undertaken a number of strategic initiatives designed to
improve our operating performance and reduce expenses. The activities involved include: (a) closing a
factory in Shenzhen, China in 1999; (b) closing a factory in the Dominican Republic in 2000; (¢) moving
our samples activities from Columbus, Ohio to Nuevo Laredo, Mexico in 1999; (d) instituting improved
design and product development processes to increase speed to market in 1999; (e) closing a warehouse in
San Antonio, Texas, in 2000 and a warehouse in Goldsboro, North Carolina in 2003, while opening a
warehouse in Nuevo Laredo, Mexico in 2002; (f) shifting cutting activities from Laredo, Texas to Nuevo
Laredo, Mexico in 2002; (g) shifting our molding operations from San Angelo, Texas, to Nuevo Laredo,
Mexico in 2002; (h) beginning in 1999, changing ourselves from a company that manufactures nearly its
entire production requirements to one that manufactures about two-thirds of its requirements and
contracts with outside third party manufacturers for one-third of its needs; (i) opening in 2001 a resource
office in Hong Kong for procuring products in the Far East; (j) changing our European branch sales and
warehouse operations to a distributorship-type arrangement in 2003; and (k) closing down operations in
Wales and Paris. All of these restructuring activities were designed and intended to improve our
operating profitability with varying degrees of success. As discussed above, we have announced a 2004
business plan that calls for significant changes to and restructuring of our business. See also Note (15) of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which discusses our restructuring activities.

27-




Results of Continuing Operations
2003 Sales and Continuing Operations Compared with 2002

With the discontinuance of the thermal products business segment, we now operate in two *
different business segments: (a) “Barry Comfort North America”, which manufactures and markets at-
and around-the-home comfort footwear for sale in North America; and (b) “Barry Comfort Europe”,
which markets footwear principally in western Europe. See also Note (14) of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a breakdown of net sales by geographic region and by segment of our operations.

During 2003, net sales from continuing operations totaled $123.1 million, an increase of
approximately 3.5 percent over 2002. Net sales for Barry Comfort North America increased by 4.3
percent in 2003, to $113.9 million from $109.2 million in 2002. The increase in net sales for Barry
Comfort North America occurred principally among our mass merchandising customers, with about one-
third of that increase attributable to sales to our largest customer — Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. We continue
efforts to provide new styling of our soft washable footwear, with continued focus on fresh product,
delivered complete and on-time to our customers. Our products performed reasonably well at retail, even
though many retailers struggled through another highly discount-oriented holiday season.

Net sales for Barry Comfort Europe decreased to $9.3 million in 2003, from $9.8 million in 2002.
The primary contributor to this decrease in sales in Europe was the change in our method of operations in
Europe early in 2003. As previously noted, early in 2003, we entered into an agreement that effectively
converted the European soft washable slipper portion of Barry Comfort Europe into a
distributorship/license arrangement. We continue to operate our Fargeot business, but the slipper
business operating with a warehouse in Wales and a sales office in Paris closed in 2003, and those
customers are now served by our British distributor. We anticipate receiving a royalty from the British
distributor but will no longer incur the expense of supporting our own warehouse in Wales and sales
organization in Paris.

Gross profit in 2003 increased to $42.7 million from $41.4 million in 2002. Gross profit as a
percent of net sales remained rather constant at 34.7 percent in 2003, compared with 34.8 percent in 2002.
The benefits realized in 2003 as a result of the restructuring activities over the last several years, as
discussed previously, were offset in 2003 by increased manufacturing variances incurred during 2003,
and the need to increase inventory write-downs recorded at the end of 2003. As noted in Note (2) of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, total inventory write-downs increased by $2.3 million
during 2003.

Selling, general and administrative expenses declined in 2003 to $48.2 million compared with
$50.4 million in 2002. Most of the decline in these expenses from 2002 to 2003 occurred in the
marketing and administrative areas. The expenses incurred in selling were approximately the same as in
2002. We estimate that the expenses incurred in shipping and distribution increased during the third and
fourth quarters of 2003 by approximately $2 million, in response to the added amounts of inventory that
we had on hand.

Restructuring expenses and asset impairments recognized in 2003 amounted to $2.6 million
compared with $2.8 million recognized in 2002. See also Note (15) of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Net interest expense increased in 2003 to $1.4 million from $1.3 million in 2002. During 2003,

we relied more heavily on the Revolver to fund the daily operations of the business. The daily average
seasonal borrowings outstanding under the Revolver increased to $19.5 million from $11.9 million in
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2002. The weighted average interest rate on short-term bank borrowings in 2003 decreased slightly to 3.9
percent from 4.1 percent in 2002, reflecting the general decline in short-term market related interest rates.

While our operating results for the year were very disappointing, they were an improvement over
2002. The pre-tax loss from continuing operations decreased to $9.3 million in 2003 from a pretax loss of
$12.3 million in 2002. With the decision to provide a full valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
totaling $13.8 million, we recognized a tax expense in 2003 amounting to $10.1 million, compared with
an estimated benefit recognized in 2002 of $4.2 million. As a result, we incurred a net loss from
continuing operations of $19.4 million in 2003 compared with $8.2 million in 2002. Including losses for
the discontinued thermal operations, we incurred a total net loss of $21.7 million compared with a total
net loss in 2002 of $11.9 million.

2002 Sales and Continuing Operations Compared with 2001

During 2002, net sales totaled $119.0 million, a decrease of 8.0 percent from net sales of $129.4
million in 2001. There were net sales decreases in both segments of the business. Net sales in Barry
Comfort North America decreased in 2002 to $109.2 million from $118.9 million in 2001, while net sales
in Barry Comfort Europe decreased in 2002 to $9.8 million from $10.4 million in 2001. Economic
malaise domestically and internationally contributed to a decline in sales generally across all channels of
distribution and all classes of trade. Retailing in the holiday season of 2002 was very promotional, with
retailers aggressively discounting products early in the holiday selling season.

Gross profit decreased in 2002 by approximately $7.8 million. In 2002, gross profit amounted to
$41.4 million or approximately 34.8 percent of net sales, while in 2001, gross profit amounted to $49.2
million or about 38.0 percent of net sales. The primary cause of the decline in gross profit was the $10.3
million decrease in net sales from 2001 to 2002.

During much of 2002, we incurred restructuring and other costs relating to implementing our
three-year strategic plan. During 2002, we completed that portion of our three-year strategic plan relating
to repositioning activities in lower cost locations. We completed the move of our molding operations
from San Angelo, Texas to Nuevo Laredo, Mexico, and we completed the move of our cutting
subassembly operation from Laredo, Texas to Nuevo Laredo. We opened a new distribution facility in
Nuevo Laredo. While all of these activities were planned for the year, the task level was greater than
anticipated. We wanted to assure that our customers did not suffer delays in their supply of our footwear,
so we maintained certain duplicative operations in both San Angelo and Laredo until we were sure that
there would be not disruption in our supplying the market place from Nuevo Laredo. The costs of this
assurance resulted in an estimated $3.5 million of added expense, incurred mainly during the first half of
the year. This added expense adversely affected gross profit for the year, and the additional warehousing
costs adversely affected selling, general and administrative expenses, as noted in the following
paragraphs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased significantly during 2002, by
approximately $4.4 million, compared with those expenses in 2001, Selling and marketing expenses
increased during 2002, primarily in the area of retail program support, such as advertising, displays, and
other promotional programs at retail. Warehousing expenses also increased during 2002, with a sizable
portion of that related to the duplicative activities conducted in conjunction with the opening of the new
warehousing facility in Nuevo Laredo early in 2002,

Net interest expense increased to $1.3 million in 2002 from $1.1 million in 2001. Two factors

influenced this increase. As noted below in “Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Acceleration of NAFTA Tariff Reductions”, we recognized a long-term
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obligation to the consultants who assisted us in the accelerated elimination of NAFTA duties as of the
beginning of 2002. As of the end of 2002, the discounted present value of that long-term obligation
amounted to $4.0 million. In 2002, the amount of imputed interest related to this obligation amounted to
$374 thousand. In addition, during 2002, the daily average seasonal borrowings outstanding under our
revolving credit agreement increased to $11.9 million. During 2001, the average borrowings under the
revolver credit agreement were $7.9 million. The weighted average interest rate on short-term bank
borrowings in 2002 was 4.1 percent, compared to 5.8 percent during 2001. Short-term market interest
rates generally declined in 2002 as a result of actions taken by the Federal Reserve during the year,
although this decline was in part offset by the increase in spreads over market charged by our bank. The
net result was a 1.7 percent reduction in the average rate of interest that we incurred in 2002 for short-
term borrowings.

During 2002, we engaged in several actions related to reorganization efforts. One action in the
first quarter resulted in the coordinated transfer of cutting operations from the U.S. to Mexico and a
reduction in sewing operations in Nuevo Laredo, Mexico, resulting in the reduction of 354 positions in
North America, at a cost of $727 thousand. Other actions in the third and fourth quarters were taken to
restructure staff support of sales and operations, impacting 9 employees at a cost of $938 thousand. In the
fourth quarter, we announced the decision to close the Goldsboro distribution center in 2003, impacting
53 positions at a cost of $601 thousand, and to similarly close the Wales distribution center in 2003,
impacting 22 positions at a cost of $178 thousand. The closure of the Wales facility also resulted in
recognition of $208 thousand in future lease obligation losses as well as $150 thousand in asset
impairment charges. The aggregate reorganization and asset impairment charges recognized in 2002
amounted to $2.8 million.

As a result, for fiscal 2002, we incurred a loss from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest of $12.3 million, a net loss from continuing operations after income taxes of $8.2
million, and a net loss of $11.9 million or $1.23 per diluted share. During 2001, we had earnings from
continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest of $3.0 million, net earnings from
continuing operations of $1.8 million, and net earnings of $932 thousand, or $0.10 per diluted share.

Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Acceleration of NAFTA Tariff Reductions

Effective January 2002, the 15 percent duty on United States slippers made in Mexico was
eliminated. The tariff removal, which was a part of round three of the NAFTA tariff acceleration,
eliminated duties on a range of products, including slippers. Prior to the accelerated elimination of the
duty, the slipper tariff had been scheduled to be reduced annually at the rate of 2.5 percent per year until
its elimination on January 1, 2008.

We utilized third parties to assist us in obtaining this tariff relief. Upon the successful conclusion,
we agreed to pay an aggregate of approximately $6.25 million, mostly in equal quarterly installments over
a four-year period through the end of 2005, For accounting purposes, a portion of the payment to the
consultants has been treated as debt and a portion of the payment has been treated as an imputed interest
charge associated with that debt. The net present value of this four-year obligation, which is subordinated
to our other obligations, is included within current installments and long-term debt at its discounted
present value totaling $2.7 million, as of the end of 2003, compared with $4.0 million at the end of 2002.
The net benefit we expected to receive from the tariff relief, after taking into account the consultants’
fees, had been estimated at $12 million over the period from 2002 through 2006. Under the three-year
strategy in place at the time, this duty elimination was expected to have a positive impact on our business.
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The tariff removal allowed us to take advantage of the benefits of manufacturing in our North
American plants and was a key element in our operating strategies. It permitted us to relocate cutting and
molding activities from the U. S. to Mexico and keep our cost structure in line with competitive products
produced offshore. In 2002, we transferred jobs from the U. S. to Mexico to realize the benefits of
reduced labor and benefit costs. Without the tariff elimination, most of the labor savings would have
been offset by the increase in the cost from duties. The shift of manufacturing jobs was completed in
2002, and impacted about 350 positions in the Company. The severance costs associated with this
reduction in workforce were recognized in the first quarter of 2002 and amounted to about $727 thousand.

This strategy proved inadequate to provide a competitive advantage relative to companies
purchasing all of their goods from third party suppliers in the Far East, mainly from China. As previously
discussed, we have decided to close all of our manufacturing operations in Mexico by the end of 2004,
and eventually to outsource our entire product needs to resources in China and the Far East.

Legal Proceedings

On December 22, 2003, RGB Technology settled the pending patent litigation involving RGB
Technology, Thermal Solutions, Inc. and CookTek, LLC. We had previously reported that RGB
Technology was involved in a patent infringement lawsuit relating to its MICROCORE® pizza delivery
systems. The terms of the settlement are confidential, but the settiement resolves all areas of dispute
between the parties and concludes the pending litigation. As a part of this settlement, RGB Technology,
Inc. agreed to make certain nominal payments during 2004.

On June 18, 2003, we sold substantially all of the assets of RGB Technology to a corporation,
now known as “Vesture Corporation”, headed by the co-founder and former chief executive officer of
RGB Technology. As part of the transaction, Vesture Corporation agreed to pay to RGB Technology a
royalty on certain of Vesture Corporation’s net sales in excess of certain threshold amounts, through 2007
at varying royalty rates. In connection with the settlement of the pending litigation involving the
MICROCORE® pizza delivery systems, RGB Technology will now receive a royalty based upon Vesture
Corporation’s net sales of certain products through 2007 in excess certain thresholds in each year, but
excluding Vesture Corporation’s sales of products that utilize the patents involved in the settled litigation.
We anticipate that the royalties resulting from this settlement will not have a material impact on the
results of operations in the future.

Foreign Currency Risk

Substantially all of our sales are currently conducted in U. S. Dollars and with a much lesser
portion conducted in Canadian Dollars and Mexican Pesos. In accordance with our established policy
guidelines, we have at times hedged this currency exposure on a short-term basis, using foreign exchange
contracts as a means to protect ourselves from fluctuations. The amount we normally maintain under
foreign exchange contracts has not been material to our overall operations. At the end of fiscal 2003 and
2002, there were no such foreign exchange contracts outstanding.

A sizable portion of our manufacturing labor and other costs is incurred in Mexican Pesos. It has
not been our practice to hedge the Peso as it has generally declined in value over longer time horizons,
when compared to the U. S. Dollar. In addition, forward contracts denominated in Pesos historically have
not been readily or economically available. Should the Peso suffer a devaluation compared to the U. S.
Dollar, we believe that the impact would likely be of benefit to us by reducing, at least initially, the
effective cost of manufacturing and to some extent the cost of distribution, although any such reduction
would not be expected to have a significant impact upon our results of operations.
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License Agreement for European Distribution

Early in January 2003, we entered into a five-year licensing agreement for the sale and marketing
of our slipper products with a British footwear and apparel firm. During the first half of 2003, we ceased
operating our Wales distribution center and our Paris sales office. This distributor-type license agreement
allows continuing service to the soft washable footwear market in Europe, without our maintaining the
costly sales organization, and warehousing and distribution operations we had since the mid-1990’s. We
continue to maintain our Fargeot footwear subsidiary which operates in southern France and is not subject
to the license agreement.

RISK FACTORS

Some of the information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking
statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. You can identify these statements by forward-
looking words such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” or similar words.
These statements, which are forward-looking statements as that term is defined in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, are based upon our current plans and strategies and reflect our current
assessment of the risks and uncertainties related to our business. You should read statements that contain
forward-looking statements carefully because they (1) discuss our future expectations; (2) contain
projections of our future results of operations or of our future financial condition; or (3} state other
“forward-looking” information. Unexpected events may arise in the future that we are not able to predict
or control. The risk factors that we describe below, as well as any other cautionary language in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, give examples of the types of uncertainties that may cause our actual
performance to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements.
You should know that if the events described in this section and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K occur, they could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial
condition.

RIS

Execution of New Business Plan. We have developed and are implementing a business plan the
goal of which is to materially reduce or eliminate our operating losses, and to allow us to generate greater
cash flow from our business operations. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources — 2004 Liquidity.” A
key component of this plan is the closing by the end of 2004 of all our manufacturing operations, which
are located in Mexico, as well as our manufacturing support operations in San Antonio, Texas. We intend
to purchase additional goods from third party contract manufacturers in Asia and elsewhere to replace the
goods previously manufactured in our plants in Mexico. The closing of our manufacturing plants and our
increasing reliance on third party contract manufacturers present a number of business risks. The cost of
closing the plants may be significantly higher than our forecast because of unforeseen labor difficulties or
higher than expected shut-down costs and governmental charges. Furthermore, we may incur higher than
anticipated costs as well as staffing challenges as we dramatically increase over a relatively short time
period the volume of goods we purchase from third party contract manufacturers in Asia. Although we
believe our systems and staffing are adequate to support such an increase in the volume of goods sourced
from third party contract manufacturers, we cannot assure that this is the case. Closing our manufacturing
plants will also mean that by 2005 we will be totally dependent on third party contract manufacturers to
supply our goods. Although we do not anticipate that expanding our dependence on third party contract
manufacturers will impact product quality or our ability to deliver our goods to customers on a timely
basis, these remain risks of eliminating our own manufacturing capacity. In addition, the loss or
disruption of our suppliers could have an adverse impact on our financial condition and results of
operations.

A second major component of our business plan included a review and assessment of our staffing
requirements and methods of operation. Based upon this review, we have implemented initiatives to
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significantly reduce operating expenses for corporate overhead. Although not anticipated, these staffing
reductions could have an adverse impact on our business operations.

Our business plan also includes initiatives to change the way in which we do business with many
of our customers to modify return rights and other customer concessions and accommodations. The
implementation of new policies that impact the right of customers to return goods or receive other
concessions may result in reduced customer demand for our products. We are currently forecasting a
modest reduction in sales for 2004, although these changes to our long-standing business practices,
together with the impact on customers of our recent financial problems, could result in a more substantial
sales reduction than what is now forecasted.

Our business plan also calls for a reduction in inventory levels and better inventory management.
Our financing plans for 2004 assume that we will achieve a reduction in inventory levels through closeout
sales and better inventory purchasing and management practices. Our failure to achieve these goals could
mean that we have liquidity requirements in excess of the financing provided by the CIT Facility.

Our business plan is integral to our goal of eliminating our operating losses. However, there can
be no assurance that our plan will succeed, or in the event that it does succeed, that it will be sufficient to
stem our losses or improve our cash flows.

Status of Interim CEQ. Thomas M. Von Lehman, our current President and Chief Executive
Officer, is serving on an interim basis. He has entered into a six-month employment agreement with the
Company dated March 10, 2004, as amended. The employment agreement may be extended by mutual
agreement for additional periods of three months, although there is no assurance that the current interim
President and Chief Executive Officer will agree to serve past the first six-month term. If the agreement
terminates before April 30, 2005, other than as a result of the death or disability of Mr. Von Lehman or
his termination for cause, the Company and Mr. Von Lehman have agreed to negotiate in good faith a
consulting agreement extending through April 30, 2005. Our long-term success will depend, in part, on
our ability to identify and hire a permanent Chief Executive Officer with the expertise and experience to
successfully run a comfort footwear business.

History of Operating Losses. We reported a net loss in both 2002 and 2003. Because of the
anticipated costs of implementing our business plan, we expect to operate at a loss in 2004. Our
independent auditors have modified their report on our consolidated financial statements with a going
concern uncertainty paragraph based on our failure to meet a number of financial covenants in the
Revolver, our recurring losses from operations and our entering the CIT Facility which does not
contractually obligate CIT to advance funds to us. The independent auditors’ report notes that, in their
view, these matters raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

New Financing Facility. We have entered into a new factoring and financing agreement with
CIT. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources — 2004 Liquidity — CIT Credit Facility” for a discussion of
the CIT Facility. The availability of funding under the CIT Facility is subject to the discretion of CIT and
depends, in part, upon our eligible borrowing base, which includes the amount of our eligible accounts
receivable and inventory. Although management believes that the CIT Facility should be sufficient to
provide us with adequate liquidity for our operations in 2004, a reduction in sales below our planned
amount or other events could make the CIT Facility inadequate to meet our operating requirements,
thereby resulting in a liquidity short-fall. Further, if we are unable to reverse our operating losses, CIT
could decide to cease funding under the CIT facility.

Competition. Our comfort footwear business is highly competitive. Most of our competitors
source all of their products from contract manufacturers in China and other countries in Asia which may
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give them a lower cost of goods. In addition, the introduction of comfort footwear products that appeal to
the consumer’s sense of fashion and comfort is important to our success. In order to remain competitive,
we must continue to introduce new products that customers find appealing in either fashion or comfort or
both.

Seasonality of the Business. Our business is very seasonal. Our strongest sales period has
historically been the months of September, October and November, because our goods are frequently
purchased as gifts for the Christmas holiday season. Consumer demand for our products during the
Christmas selling season is critical to our success. I[f consumer demand for our products during this
critical period is lackluster because of bad weather, recessionary concerns or other factors, we will likely
suffer operating losses.

Status of the Market for the Company’s Common Shares. Our common shares are traded on the
New York Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”). We were notified in 2003 that we did not meet the
Exchange’s continuing listing requirements because our market capitalization and shareholders’ equity
fell below the required minimum levels. We were given an opportunity to submit an 18-month plan for
satisfying the minimum continuing listing requirements. Because of our loss in 2003, it is likely that we
will not satisfy the Exchange’s continuing listing requirements in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the
Exchange may decide to delist our common shares, at which time we could become listed on another
exchange or market or not be listed.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

As of January 3, 2004, neither R. G. Barry nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any market
risk sensitive instruments which would require disclosure under Item 305 of SEC Regulation S-K.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The following consolidated financial statements of R. G. Barry and its subsidiaries are included in
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
R. G. Barry Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of R. G. Barry Corporation and
subsidiaries as of January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in
the three-year period ended January 3, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of R. G. Barry Corporation and subsidiaries as of January 3, 2004 and
December 28, 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the fiscal years in
the three-year period ended January 3, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Notes 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company has failed to meet a number of covenants under its Revolving Credit Agreement, has suffered
recurring losses from operations, and has entered into a new financing agreement that does not
contractually obligate the lender to advance funds to the Company. These matters raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these
matters are also described in Note 19. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

KPMG LLP

Columbus, Ohio
April 1, 2004
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R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002

(in thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:

Trade (less allowance for doubtful receivables, returns and
promotions of $18,494 and $20,264, respectively)

Other
Inventory
Recoverable income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net property, plant and equipment

Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Short-term bank note payable
Current installments of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Accrued retirement cost, excluding current liability
Long-term debt, excluding current instaliments
Other

Total liabilities

Minority interest
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred shares, $1 par value per share. Authorized 3,775

Class A shares, 225 Series I Junior Participating

Class A shares, and 1,000 Class B shares; none issued
Common shares, $1 par value per share. Authorized 22,500
shares; issued and outstanding 9,834 and 9,806 shares

(excluding treasury shares of 912 and 933)
Additional capital in excess of par value
Deferred compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings

Net shareholders’ equity

Commitments and contingencies

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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January 3,

2004

$ 2,012

5,403
1,715
32,797

2,452
44,379

35,274
25.905

9.369

7.532
$ 61,280

§ 2,000
3,869
7,485

5,180

18,533

13,619
2,141
1,222

35.515
378

9,834

12,851
(84)

(3,370)

6.156

25,387

61,2

December 28,
2002

6,881

9,506
1,619
32,894
4,934
3,635
1.599

61,068

39,176
28,266

10,910
5,824

2,374
7,462

87,638

3,650
10,474
6.017

9,806
12,791

(200)

(3,071)
27.862

47,188

87,638




R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal years ended January 3, 2004,

December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001

(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring and asset impairment charges (adjustments)

Operating income (loss)

Other income
Interest expense, net of interest income of $0, $40,
and $242, respectively
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations,
before income tax and minority interest
Income tax (expense) benefit
Minority interest, net of tax
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes (including a $223 loss on
disposal in 2003)
Net earnings (loss)

Earnings (loss) per common share: continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings (loss) per common share: discontinued operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings (loss) per common share: total
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002 2001
$123,137 119,024 129,361
80.427 77.597 80.182
42,710 41,427 49,179
48,163 50,360 45,973
2.563 2,837 (118)
(8,016) (11,770) 3,324
151 800 800
__(1.418) _(1,346) (1,103)
(9,283) (12,316) 3,021
(10,096) 4,191 (1,153)
(7 (25) (42)
(19,396) (8,150) 1,826
(2.310) _(3.730) (894)
$ (21,706) (11,880) 932
($1.97) (0.84) 0.20
($1.97) (0.84) 0.19
(80.24) (0.39) (0.10)
(80.24) (0.39) (0.09)
(82.21) (1.23) 0.10
($2.21) (1.23) 0.10



R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

Fiscal years ended January 3, 2004,
December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001

(in thousands)

Additional Accumulated
capital in Deferred other Net
Common excess of compen- comprehensive Retained shareholders’
shares __par value sation income (loss) earnings equity
Balance at December 30, 2000 - $ 9,371 12,069 (461) (337) 38,810 59,452
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net earnings 932 932
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment (161) (161)
Pension liability charge (credit) 3 3
Total comprehensive income 774
Amortization of deferred compensation 130 130
Stock options exercised and warrants issued 5 24 29
Balance at December 29, 2001 9,376 12,093 (331) (4953) 39,742 60,385
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss (11,880) (11,880}
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment 559 559
Pension liability charge (credit), net of
($1,878) deferred income taxes (3,135) (3,135)
Total comprehensive loss (14,456}
Amortization of deferred compensation 131 131
Stock options and warrants exercised 430 698 1,128
Balance at December 28, 2002 $ 9,806 12,791 (200) (3,071) 27,862 47,188
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss (21,706) (21,706)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment 231 231
Pension liability charge (credit)
(530) 530
Total comprehensive loss (22,005)
Amortization of deferred compensation 116 116
Stock options exercised 28 60 88
Balance at January 3, 2004 $ 9,834 12,851 (84) (3,370) 6,156 25,387

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal years ended January 3, 2004,
December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001

(in thousands, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings (loss) $ (21,706) (11,880) 932
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefit 2.310 3.730 894
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations (19,396) (8,150) 1,826
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and
equipment 1,762 1,779 1,674
Amortization of goodwill — — 136
Deferred income tax and valuation adjustment expense (benefit) 9,841 (1,714) 42
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 390 271 135
Impairment loss on trademarks and patents — 226 —
Impairment loss on goodwill 2,363 — —
Amortization of deferred compensation 116 131 130
Minority interest, net of tax 17 25 42
Changes in:
Accounts receivable 3,463 4,003 5,348
Inventory (212) 2,003 (2,418)
Recoverable income taxes 4,934 (4,934) —
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,147) (3,785) 2,804
Accounts payable (3,192) 2,923 1,300
Accrued expenses (2,166) 2,406 286
Accrued retirement cost, net 1,172 768 690
Other liabilities (1.049) 149 402
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations (4.104) (3.899) 12,397
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 1,144 (1.931) (3.179)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,960) (5.830) 9.218
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (1,662) (2,373) (1,186)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, and equipment 1.168 8 12
Net cash used in investing activities (494) (2,365) (1,174)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Jong-term debt and short-term bank note payable 2,000 5,092 —
Repayments of long-term debt (3,546) (3,416) (2,671)
Proceeds from shares issued 88 1,128 29
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1.458) 2.804 (2.642)
Effect of exchange rates on cash 43 14 (74)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (4,869) (5,377) 5,328
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.881 12,258 6.930
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $§ 2012 6,881 12,258
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Interest paid $ 1,526 1,223 1,425
Income taxes paid (recovered), net _(4.644) 723 (3,113)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

-40-




€)) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b

(©

(d)

(e

Operations

R. G. Barry Corporation (the “Company”) is a United States based multinational
corporation. The Company’s principal line of business is the design, production, and
distribution of comfort products for at-and around-the-home. The predominant market
for the Company’s products is North America. Products are sold primarily to department
stores, chain stores, and mass merchandisers.

The Company owns an 80% ownership interest in a French company, Escapade, S.A. and
its Fargeot et Compagnie, S.A. subsidiary (collectively, “Fargeot”). The Fargeot
subsidiary was purchased in 1999 and the underlying purchase agreement includes put
and call options for the purchase of the remaining 20% of the Fargeot shares. The
minority interest owner may put his shares to the Company for a period of five years after
July 22, 2004 at a fair value as determined by the purchase agreement. Similarly, the
Company may call the remaining shares through July 22, 2009 on the same basis.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Minority interest of 20% in Fargeot is presented on an after-
tax basis in the Company’s financial statements.

The Company maintains its accounts on a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday
nearest December 31.

Cash Equivalents

Investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition are
considered cash equivalents. There were no balances maintained in such investments as
of the end of 2002 or 2003.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market as determined on the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) basis (see Note 2).

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense has been provided substantially using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets
acquired, is governed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 mandated the discontinuance of
goodwill amortization effective with the 2002 year and requires an annual evaluation of
goodwill to determine and recognize what, if any, impairment of goodwill should be
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recorded. The annual evaluation for impairment was done in the second quarter of each
year and is updated in the event of any major events or changes should they occur later in
the year. The evaluation of goodwill was made with no impairment adjustment required
for the 2002 year.

As a consequence of the changes occurring throughout the Company, management
determined that it was appropriate to reassess the value of these assets as of the end of
2003. Based on its assessment at the end of 2003 of the present and projected long-term
business environment for its 80% owned Fargeot subsidiary, the Company determined
that the goodwill value related to its purchase of the 80% ownership was impaired.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of $2,363 was recorded in 2003.

Amortization of goodwill in 2001 amounted to $136; there were no similar amortization
charges in 2002 or 2003.

Trademarks and Patents

The Company incurs costs in obtaining and perfecting trademarks and patents related to
the Company’s products and production related processes. These costs are generally
amortized over a period subsequent to acquisition not to exceed 5 years and are evaluated
for impairment on an annual basis as required by SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the goods are shipped to customers with
adequate allowance made for anticipated sales returns. The Company bases its allowance
for sales returns on current and historical trends and experience.

Product Warranties

The Company’s thermal product subsidiary (reported as discontinued operations)
provided extended product warranties on certain thermal products sold in commercial
business channels. These product warranties provided coverage over a range from 12 to
18 months. The Company’s accounting policy was to accrue for the estimated future
warranty costs on these selected products at the time of sale. With the sale of the
subsidiary’s assets, net of liabilities, the buyer assumed existing warranty obligations.

Advertising and Promotion

The Company has certain programs in place to advertise and promote the sale of its
products. The Company expenses the costs of advertising and promotion as incurred. For
the years ended January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001,
advertising and promotion expenses in continuing operations of $2,677, $3,540, and
$2,544, respectively, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations as required by accounting principles generally
accepted (“GAAP”) in the United States. These types of expenses included within
discontinued operations were $47, $227, and $555, respectively for those same years.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized.
The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future
taxable income or with any applicable net operating loss carry-forward period thereafter,
during periods in which temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred items, projected future taxable income, and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Per-Share Information

The computation of basic earnings (loss) per common share for 2003, 2002, and 2001 is
based on the weighted average number of outstanding common shares during the period.
Diluted earnings per common share for 2001 includes those weighted average common
shares as well as, when their effect is dilutive, potential common shares consisting of
certain common shares subject to stock options and the stock purchase plan. Diluted loss
per common share for 2003 and 2002 does not include the impact of potential common
shares due to their antidilutive effect.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net earnings (loss), foreign currency translation
adjustments and pension liability adjustments and is presented in the consolidated
statements of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income.

Translation of Foreign Currency Financial Statements

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations have been translated into United States dollars
at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the end of each period. Revenues,
expenses, and cash flows have been translated at the applicable weighted average rates of
exchange in effect during each period.

Shareholders’ Equity

The Company has various stock option plans, under which the Company granted
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options exercisable for periods of up to 10
years from the date of grant at prices not less than fair market value at the date of grant.
In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure -- an amendment
of SFAS No. 123, SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
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compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to require prominent disclosures in
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
compensation and the effect in measuring compensation expense. The disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 148 are effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2002.

The Company has elected, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as
amended by SFAS No. 148, to apply the current accounting rules under APB Opinion
No. 25 and related interpretations, including FASB Interpretation No. 44 (Accounting for
Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB No. 25) in
accounting for employee stock options and accordingly, we have presented the disclosure
only information as required by SFAS No. 123 (see Note 10).

Had the Company elected to determine compensation cost based on the fair value at the
grant date, as prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net earnings (loss) would
have been the proforma results shown below:

2003 2002 2001
Net earnings (loss):
As reported $(21,706) (11,880) 932
Pro forma (22,378) (12,961) 279
Earnings (loss) per share (diluted):
As reported (2.21) (1.23) .10
Pro forma (2.21) (1.29) 03

Using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the per-share, weighted-average fair value
of stock options granted during 2003, 2002, and 2001, was $1.72, $3.07, and $2.14,
respectively, on the date of grant. The assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the
options as of January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 were:

January 3, December 28,
2004 2002
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Risk-free interest rate 3% 5%
Expected life-ISO grants 6 years 6 years
Expected life-nonqualified grants 8 years 8 years

@

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

-44-



(@)

0]

(s)

®

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses
as reported in the financial statements approximate their fair value because of the short-
term maturity of those instruments. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is
disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 144. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets held for disposal be measured at
the lower of book value or fair market value less costs of disposal. In addition, SFAS No.
144 expands the scope of discontinued operations to include all operations of an entity
with operations that can be separated from the rest of the business and that will be
eliminated in a disposal transaction.

Allowances Granted to Resellers

In April 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus on issues 2
and 3 within EITF 00-25, Vendor Income Statement Characterization of Consideration
Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products. EITF 00-25 addresses whether consideration
from a vendor to a reseller of the vendor’s products is an adjustment of the selling prices
of the vendor’s products and, therefore, a reduction of sales or a cost incurred by the
vendor for assets or services received from the reseller and, therefore, a cost or an
expense. EITF 00-25 was effective in 2002 and, upon adoption, prior periods presented
for comparative purposes were reclassified. Upon adoption in 2002, this resulted in a
reduction of Company’s net sales and corresponding decrease in advertising and
promotional expenses formerly included in selling, general and administrative expenses
of approximately $11,055, $13,195, and $9,500 for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Duty Acceleration Costs Recognition

Effective January 1, 2002, the 15% duties imposed by the United States on slippers
coming from Mexico were eliminated. The duties had been scheduled for reduction at
the rate of 2.5% per year until the scheduled elimination on January 1, 2008. With the
assistance of two firms, the Company was successful in accelerating the elimination of
these duties and agreed to pay an aggregate of about $6,200, most of which is payable in
quarterly installments through 2005.

The discounted cost associated with these future payments was $5,291 and is being
recognized through cost of sales proportionately over the years 2002 to 2007 based on the
estimated benefit of duty elimination on Company product as produced and projected to
be produced in Mexico over this six-year period. In 2003 and 2002, $1,473 and $873,
respectively, of these costs have been recognized within cost of sales. The unamortized
balance of $2,945 and $4,418 is included in the consolidated balance sheet in other assets
for 2003 and 2002, respectively. This asset classification is consistent with projected
realization of the duty elimination benefits and expected recognition of those costs over
the remaining years through 2007.
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(v Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In May, 2003, FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. SFAS No. 150
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer
classify a financial instrument that is within the scope of SFAS No. 150 as a liability (or
an asset in some circumstances). Many of those instruments were previously classified as
equity. The application of SFAS No. 150 did not have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. This Statement is effective for financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003.

Inventory

Inventory by category for the Company consists of the following:

January 3, December 28,
2004 2002
Raw materials, net $ 3,771 6,981
Work in process, net 615 1,462
Finished goods, net 28,471 24,451
Net inventory $32,797 32,894

Inventory is presented net of raw material write-downs of $2,839 and $1,773, in 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and finished goods write-downs of $3,022 and $1,773, in 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at cost consists of the following:

January 3, December 28, Estimated

2004 2002 life in years
Land and improvements § 434 508 8-15
Buildings and improvements 3,244 6,008 40-50
Machinery and equipment 23,978 24,670 3-10
Leasehold improvements 7,212 7,700 5-20
Construction in progress 406 290
Total property, plant and equipment $35.274 39,176
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Intangible Trademark and Patent Assets
These assets include the following:

January 3, December 28,

2004 2002

Trademarks and patents, at cost $702 527
Less accumulated amortization 298 187
Trademarks and patents, net $404 340

The Company has recognized trademark and patent amortization expense of $111 in 2003, $118
in 2002, and $174 in 2001, which is included within selling, general, and administrative expenses.
In addition, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $226 on thermal product trademarks
and patents in 2002. Based on the Company’s methods, remaining net trademark and patent cost
will be recognized as amortization expense of $80 for each of the next 5 years. This expense
recognition would accelerate should circumstances change and an impairment be determined for
trademarks or patents with remaining value.

Short-term Bank Note Payable and Long-term Debt

Short-term bank note payable consists of the amount outstanding under the Company’s Revolving
Credit Agreement.

On December 27, 2002, the Company terminated its previous unsecured revolving credit
agreement, and entered into a new $32 million Revolving Credit Agreement (“Revolver”) with its
principal bank to refinance the revolving credit agreement between the Company and the bank
dated March 12, 2001, as amended. As part of the Revolver, the Company also executed and
delivered a Security Agreement (“Security Agreement”) in favor of the bank, as collateral agent
for itself and the 9.7% noteholder, pursuant to which the Company granted a security interest in
all of its personal property assets to secure its obligations (a) to the bank, including those
obligations under the Revolver and (b) under the 9.7% note, as amended. [n conjunction with the
execution of the Revolver and the Security Agreement, the Company also entered into a
Conditional Consent Agreement dated as of December 27, 2002 with the 9.7% noteholder, which
permitted granting the security interests under the Security Agreement.

The Revolver was originally a three-year $32.0 million commitment from the bank that extends
through April 30, 2006. The Revolver contains certain periodic monthly commitment limitations
ranging from $3 million in January, $12 million from February through April, $32 million for
May through October, and $27 million for November and December. On March 31, 2003, the
Revolver was amended to modify the commitment limitations above from $12 million from
February through April, and $32 million per month for May through October, to $12 million in
February and March, and $32 million for April through October, with the remainder of the
Revolver remaining unchanged. The Revolver places further limitations on the amount of the
available commitment to the lesser of: [) the commitment limitations noted or II) 80% of the
Company’s eligible accounts receivable, as defined, plus 40% of the Company’s eligible
inventory, as defined. On September 1, 2003, the Revolver was amended again, modifying the
commitment limitations back to the original $12 million from February through April, and $32
million for May through October, with an additional amount of $4 million of commitment added
for the period from September 1, 2003 through November 1, 2003 only. In addition, the
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September 2003 amendment amended the cash flow leverage test within the agreement, lessening
the restrictive nature of that test. On September 15, 2003, at the request of the bank the Company
agreed to an added covenant to the Revolver that required that net income be at least $1 (one
dollar), excluding the loss incurred by the discontinued operations of Vesture Corporation
(*Vesture™). In exchange, the covenant requiring a minimum EBIDTA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization) for the year ending January 3, 2004 was removed. Again on
January 22, 2004, the Revolver was amended. This fourth amendment increased the commitment
limitation in January 2004 from $3 million to $9 million. The fourth amendment provided the
bank with total dominion over the Company’s cash, provided the bank with a first mortgage lien
on the Company’s headquarters building in Ohio (shared ratably with the 9.7% noteholder),
increased the magnitude and timing of reporting information to the bank, and required the
Company to hire business consultants, reporting to the board of directors, to assist it in revising
its business strategy.

On March 10, 2004, the Company and the bank entered into the fifth amendment to the Revolver,
further amending the Revolver. These changes include, but are not limited to: (1) an increase in
the credit availability for the month of March 2004 from $12 million to $13.8 million, (2)
modification of the Borrowing Base, as defined, to exclude from eligible inventory the inventory
located outside of the United States and to reduce the Borrowing Base by $2.1 million, which is
the approximate amount of the Company’s obligations to the 9.7% noteholder, and (3) the grant
to the bank and the 9.7% noteholder, ratably, an assignment of and lien on life insurance policies
owned by the Company and insuring the life of one of its key executives, as additional collateral
under the Security Agreement.

The Revolver contains various other covenants, including financial covenants that require the
Company to maintain minimum consolidated tangible net worth, minimum coverage of interest
expense beginning at the end of the first quarter in fiscal 2004, and certain cash flow leverage
ratios beginning at the end of fiscal 2003. The Revolver requires that the Company be completely
out of the Revolver for any 15-consecutive day period during 2003 and any 30-consecutive day
period during 2004 and 2005.

The Company failed to meet a number of covenants under the Revolver as of the end of 2003.
The Company did not meet the minimum tangible net worth test; the required $1 (one dollar) of
net earnings, exclusive of the losses of the discontinued business; the cash flow leverage test; and
the interest coverage test. As a result of the failure to meet the covenant tests under the Revolver,
the Company was also outside the compliance parameters of the loan from the 9.7% noteholder.
In addition, with the losses incurred for the year, the Company did not meet the minimum
tangible net worth test of the loan from the 9.7% noteholder.

The weighted average interest rate on $2 million of short-term bank note outstanding at January
3, 2004 was 3.9%.
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

January 3, December 28,

2004 2002
9.7% note, due July 2004 $ 2,142 4,285
Subordinated obligation 2,747 3,966
Other notes 1,121 1,159
6,010 9,410
Less current installments 3,869 3,650
Long-term debt, excluding current installments  $ 2,141 5,760

The aggregate minimum principal maturities of the long-term debt for each of the next five years
following January 3, 2004 are as follows:

2004 $ 3,869
2005 1,698
2006 283
2007 88
2008 44
2009 28

5___ 6010

The 9.7% note, issued in July 1994, requires semiannual interest payments and annual principal
repayments, which commenced in 1998 and end in 2004.

Effective January 1, 2002, the 15% duties imposed by the United States on slippers coming from
Mexico were eliminated. The duties had been scheduled for reduction at the rate of 2.5% per year
until the scheduled elimination on January 1, 2008. The Company was successful in accelerating
the elimination of these duties and agreed to pay an aggregate of about $6,200, most of which is
payable in quarterly installments through December 2005. Reflected in current installments and
long-term debt is $2,747, which represents the present value, discounted at 8%, of the remaining
quarterly installments. The quarterly obligations due are subordinated to the obligations under the
9.7% note and obligations under the Revolver, as described below.

The Company has estimated the fair value of its long-term debt based upon the present value of
expected cash flows, considering expected maturities and using current interest rates available to
the Company for borrowings with similar terms, The fair value of the 9.7% note was
approximately $2,250 and $4,500 at January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002, respectively.

The debt due to both the bank and the 9.7% noteholder are classified as current debt.

The other notes, issued in January 2000, require quarterly interest and principal payments which
commenced in 2000 and end in 2007. The interest rate on these notes is set to Euribor plus 1% on
a quarterly basis; at year-end 2003, the interest rate on these notes was 5.5%. The carrying value
of other notes approximates fair value based on current rates with comparable maturities.
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Lease Commitments

The Company occupies certain manufacturing, warehousing, operating, and sales facilities and
uses certain equipment under cancelable and noncancelable operating lease arrangements. A
summary of the noncancelable operating lease commitments at January 3, 2004 is as follows.

2004 § 3,495
2005 2,307
2006 1,963
2007 1,603
2008 906
2009-2011 2.888

$13,162

Substantially all of these operating lease agreements are renewable for periods of 3 to 5 years and
require the Company to pay insurance, taxes, and maintenance expenses. Rent expense under
cancelable and noncancelable operating lease arrangements in 2003, 2002, and 2001, for
continuing operations amounted to $6,281, 6,403, and $5,512, respectively. Within discontinued
operations, rent expense for these types of lease arrangements were $53, $117, and $104,
respectively, for these same periods.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:

2003 2002 2001
Current expense (benefit):
Federal § - (4,933) 105
Foreign 127 482 397
State 128 116 172
255 (4,335 674
Deferred expense (benefit) 9.841 (1.714) 42
Total expense (benefit) 10,096 (6.049) 716
Total expense (benefit) allocated to
discontinued operations _— (1,858) (437)
Total expense (benefit) on continued
operations $10.096 (4,191) 1,153

In addition to the 2002 year deferred income tax expense of $1,714, certain deferred income tax
benefits of $1,878 were allocated directly to shareholders’ equity.
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The differences between income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate
(34% in 2003, 2002, and 2001) and income tax expense (benefit) in the consolidated financial
statements are:

2003 2002 2001

Computed “expected” tax expense (benefit) $ (3,942) (6,087) 575
State income taxes, net of federal income tax

benefit 83 27 93
Foreign income tax rate differences (7) 18 138
Valuation allowance 13,344 450 —
Impairment loss on goodwill 826 — —
Other, net (208) (457 (90)
Total expense (benefit) $10.096 6,049 716
Total expense (benefit) allocated to

discontinued operations _ (1,858) 437
Total expense (benefit) on continued

operations $10,096 4,191 1,153

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below:

January 3, December 28,
2004 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable $ 857 1,050
Inventories 772 1,914
Package design costs 201 260
Certain accounting accruals, including such items as
self-insurance costs, vacation costs, and others 980 1,762
Accrued pension costs 3,352 2,694
Pension liability charge 1,878 1,878
State net operating loss carry-forward 771 619
U.S. Federal net operating loss carry-forward 4,442 —
Mexico federal net operating loss carry-forward 614 —
Other foreign deferred items, net 51 —
Property, plant and equipment — 94
Total deferred tax assets 13,918 10,271
Less valuation allowance (13,794) (450)
Deferred tax assets, net 124 9,821
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 124 —
Other foreign deferred items, net — 362
Total deferred tax liabilities 124 362
Net deferred tax assets $ — 9,459

The net deductible temporary differences incurred to date will reverse in future periods when the
Company anticipates generating taxable earnings. As a result of the Company’s cumulative
losses, the Company determined that it is questionable whether the deferred tax assets recognized
on the consolidated balance sheet will have realizable value in future years. The deferred tax
assets result from provisions in the U.S. income tax code which require that certain accounting
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accruals must wait until future years before those accruals are deductible for current income tax
purposes. With the Company’s recent operating results, there is no historical assurance that
future taxable income will be generated to offset these deferred deductible items. Accordingly,
the Company has established a valuation allowance against the net deferred tax assets in the
amount of $13,794 at the end of 2003. The allowance was $450 at the end of 2002 and was set
up against state net operating losses existing at year-end. Should the Company produce profits in
future years, such that those deferred tax assets become realized as tax deductions, the Company
will recognize that benefit. At the end of 2003, there are approximately $13,400 of net operating
loss carry-forwards available for U.S. Federal income tax purposes, and approximately $1,800 in
net operating loss carry-forwards available for Mexican income tax purposes for the Company’s
sales subsidiary in Mexico. Carry-forwards in the United States are generally available for
twenty years in the future; in Mexico, carry-forwards are available for ten years into the future.
The loss carry-forwards for U. S. Federal income tax purposes expire 20 years forward from
2003.

Deferred taxes are not provided on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries outside the United States
because it is expected that the earnings be permanently reinvested. Such earnings may become
taxable upon the sale or liquidation of these subsidiaries or upon the remittance of dividends.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following: January 3, December 28,
2004 2002
Salaries and wages $ 668 593
Income taxes 482 463
Non-income taxes 1,532 1,524
Restructuring costs 174 1,738
Current pension liabilities 1,663 194
All other areas 661 1,505
$5,180 6,017

Employee Retirement Plans

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have a noncontributory retirement plan for the benefit
of salaried and nonsalaried employees, the Associates’ Retirement Plan (“ARP”). The employees
covered under the ARP are eligible to participate upon the completion of one year of service.
Salaried participant benefits are based upon a formula applied to a participant’s final average
salary and years of service, which is reduced by a certain percentage of the participant’s social
security benefits. Nonsalaried participant benefits are based on a fixed amount for each year of
service. The ARP provides reduced benefits for early retirement. The Company intends to fund

the minimum amounts required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
(ERISA).
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The funded status of the ARP and the accrued retirement costs (measured on September 30, 2003

and 2002) as recognized at January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 were:

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at year-end

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Actual return (loss) on plan assets
Expenses
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at year-end

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Accrued retirement costs, (including $1,211 in 2003 classified as

current accrued liability for retirement costs)
Intangible asset
Accumulated other comprehensive expense

Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

The accumulated benefit obligation for the ARP was $29,058 and $26,895 as of January 3, 2004

and December 28, 2002, respectively.

The Company also has a Supplemental Retirement Plan (“SRP”) for certain officers and other key
employees of the Company as designated by the Board of Directors. The SRP is unfunded,

$

$

2003 2002
28,993 26,037
854 781
1,857 1,841
721 2,060
(1,454) (1,726)
30,971 28,993
19,073 23,625
3,818 (2,536)
(295) (290)
(1,454) _(1,726)
21,142 19,073
(9,829) (9,920)
6,390 7,173
202 226
(3,237) (2,521)
(7,915) (7,822)
202 226
4,476 5,075
(3,237) (2,521)

noncontributory, and provides for the payment of monthly retirement benefits. Benefits are based

on a formula applied to the recipients’ final average monthly compensation, reduced by a certain
percentage of their social security. For certain participants, the SRP provides an alternative

benefit formula for years worked past the normal retirement age assumed by the plan.
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The funded status of the SRP and the accrued retirement cost (measured on September 30, 2003
and 2002) recognized at January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 are:

2003 2002
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year $ 4,833 4,582
Service cost 69 63
Interest cost 407 326
Actuarial loss 2,434 30
Benefits paid (211 (168)
Benefit obligation at year-end $ 7,532 4,833
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year $ — —
Employer contributions 211 168
Benefits paid (211) (168)
Fair value of plan assets at year-end $ — —
Funded status § (7,532) (4,822)
Contribution during the fourth quarter 55 48
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) 1,171 (404)
Unrecognized prior service cost 1,014 418
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets $ (5,292) (4,760)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Accrued retirement cost, including current liability of $220 and
$194, respectively $ (7,366) (4,818)
Intangible asset 945 58
Accumulated other comprehensive expense 1,129 —
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets $ (5,292) (4,760)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the SRP was $29,058 and $26,895 as of January 3, 2004
and December 28, 2002, respectively.

Weighted average assumptions to determine net costs for both the ARP and the SRP for the years
ended January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 were:

2003 2002
Discount rate 6.60% 7.25%
Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 5.00%
Expected return on plan assets 9.00% 9.25%
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The components of net periodic benefit cost for the retirement plans were:

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 923 844 816
Interest cost 2,263 2,166 2,230
Expected return on plan assets (2,018) (2,223) (2,173)
Net amortization 298 108 73
$ 1,466 895 946

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligations and net cost as of and for the
years ended January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 were:

2003 2002
Discount rate 6.25% 6.60%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.50%
Expected return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00%

The qualified ARP is funded on a periodic basis as required under ERISA/IRS guidelines. Those
qualified plan assets are invested as of the measurement date for each fiscal year:

2003 2002
Cash 2% 2%
Domestic equities 63% 57%
Domestic fixed income securities 35% 41%
Total pension plan assets invested 100% 100%

The return on asset assumption used in the pension computations for the qualified ARP plan is
based on the Company’s best judgment of future anticipated performance of those invested assets
based on our past long-term experience and judgment on how future long-term performance will
occur.

The Company’s nonqualified SRP is unfunded and payments, as required, are made when due
from the Company’s general funds.

The Company uses a measurement date of September 30 in making the required pension
computations on an annual basis. In 2004, the Company has potential pension related payments
of $1,663 for unfunded, nonqualified supplemental retirement plans as well as for payments
anticipated for the 2003 year and 2004 quarterly estimated contributions into the funded, qualified
associate retirement plan) as disclosed in Note 8. The Company has applied for a deferral of the
lump 2003 payment due in September 2004, approximating $747, and is awaiting approval of this
application by the Internal Revenue Service. Once approved, this payment anticipated in the
contribution projection above for 2004 will be deferred to 2005. In addition, the Company has
some discretion on timing associated with the 2004 quarterly payments and these may be timed
for later payment potentially in 2005 as well.

The Company has a 401(k) plan to which salaried and nonsalaried employees may contribute a
percentage, as defined, of their compensation per pay period and the Company contributes 50%
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of the first 3% of each participant’s compensation contributed to the 401(k) plan. Effective April
1, 2003, the Company changed its matching contribution from an automatic fixed percentage to a
match that is contingent upon to meeting Company profit objectives on an annual basis. The

Company’s contribution in cash to the 401(k) plan for the years ended January 3, 2004,

December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001 were $87, $244, and $241, respectively.

Shareholders’ Equity.

The Company has various stock option plans, under which have been granted incentive stock
options (“ISOs”) and nonqualified stock options (“NQs”) exercisable for periods of up to 10 years
from date of grant at prices not less than fair market value at date of grant. Information with

respect to options under these plans follows:

Outstanding at December 30, 2000
Granted

Exercised

Expired/Cancelled

Outstanding at December 29, 2001
Granted

Exercised

Expired/Cancelled

Outstanding at December 28, 2002
Granted

Exercised

Expired/Cancelled

Outstanding at January 3, 2004

Options exercisable at January 3, 2004
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Number of Number of Weighted-
shares shares average
subject to subject to exercise
ISOs NQs _price
519,600 333,700 $7.90
428,600 258,800 426
(3,200) — 2.21
(125,300) (6.300) 8.88
819,700 586,200 $6.04
265,300 30,700 5.74
(188,700) (21,300) 2.70
(30,200) (150.000) 6.39
866,100 445,600 $6.46
202,500 59,200 343
(7,700) (20,000) 3.19
(156.600) (39.900) 6.64
904,300 444,500 591
252,700 296,800




Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted-
Number average Weighted- Number Weighted
Range of outstanding at  remaining average exercisable at  average
exercise January 3, contractual exercise January 3, exercise
prices 2004 life (years) price 2004 _price
$5.00 and under 723,300 7.8 $ 379 141,500 $ 3.36
5.01-10.00 489,500 5.0 6.90 271,600 7.79
10.01-15.00 136,400 37 13.58 136.400 13.58
1,349,200 549,500

At January 3, 2004, the remaining number of common shares available for grant of ISOs and NQs
was 260,000.

At January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, the options outstanding under
these plans were held by 80, 85, and 89 employees respectively, and had expiration dates ranging
from 2004 to 2013.

Stock appreciation rights may be issued subject to certain limitations. No such rights have been
issued or are outstanding at January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001.

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan in which approximately 600 employees are
eligible to participate. Under the terms of the plan, employees receive options to acquire common
shares at 85% of the lower of the fair market value on their enrollment date or at the end of each
two-year plan term.

Shares
subscribed
Balance at December 29, 2001 196,100
Purchases 195,700
Expired __(400)
Balance at December 28, 2002 and January 3, 2004 0
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Earnings per Share

Earnings (loss) per share for the years ended January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001 were as follows:

January 3, 2004

Net Loss Shares Per-share
(numerator)  (denominator) Amount

Basic and Diluted Loss per Share:
Net loss allocable to common shareholders $(21.706) 9,823.000 2.21

No options to purchase common shares were included in the computation of diluted loss per share
because of the Company’s net loss for 2003.

December 28, 2002
Net Loss Shares Per-Share
(numerator) (denominator) amount
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share:
Net loss allocable to common shareholders $(11,880) 9,641,000 1.23

No options to purchase common shares were included in the computation of diluted loss per share
because of the Company’s net loss for 2002.

December 29, 2001

Net Earnings Shares Per-share
(numerator)  (denominator) amount
Basic EPS:
Net earnings allocable to common shareholders $932 9,379,000 $.10
Effect of dilutive securities—
Stock options — 198.000 i
Diluted EPS:
Net earnings allocable to common shareholders
including assumed conversions §932 9,577.000 $.10

Options to purchase 1,215,000 common shares at prices up to $16.78 were outstanding in 2001
but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because based on the
Company share price at December 29, 2001, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights
In February 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a distribution of one Preferred
Share Purchase Right (“Right”) for each outstanding common share of the Company to

shareholders of record on March 16, 1998. The new Rights replaced similar rights issued in 1988
which expired on March 16, 1998. Under certain conditions, each new Right may be exercised to
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purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series I Junior Participating Class A Preferred Shares,
par value §1 per share, at an initial exercise price of $40. The Rights initially will be attached to
the common shares. The Rights will separate from the common shares and a Distribution Date
will occur upon the earlier of 10 business days after a public announcement that a person or group
has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding
common shares (“Share Acquisition Date”) or 10 business days (or such later date as the Board
shall determine) after the commencement of a tender or exchange offer that would result in a
person or group beneficially owning 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding common shares.
The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date.

In the event that any person becomes the beneficial owner of more than 20% of the outstanding
common shares, each holder of a Right will be entitled to purchase, upon exercise of the Right,
common shares having a market value two times the exercise price of the Right. In the event that,
at any time following the Share Acquisition Date, the Company is acquired in a merger or other
business combination transaction in which the Company is not the surviving corporation or 50%
or more of the Company’s assets or earning power is sold or transferred, the holder of a Right
will be entitled to buy the number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which at
the time of such transaction will have a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right.

The Rights, which do not have any voting rights, expire on March 16, 2008, and may be
redeemed by the Company at a price of $0.01 per Right at any time until 10 business days
following the Share Acquisition Date.

Each Class A Preferred Share is entitled to one-tenth of one vote, while Class B Preferred Shares,
should they become authorized for issuance by action of the Board of Directors, are entitled to ten
votes. The preferred shares are entitled to a preference in liquidation. None of the preferred shares
have been issued.

Related-party Obligation

The Company and a key executive have entered into an agreement pursuant to which the
Company is obligated for up to two years after the death of the executive to purchase, if the estate
elects to sell, up to $4 million of the Company’s common shares, at their fair market value. To
fund its potential obligation to purchase such common shares, the Company has purchased a

$5 million life insurance policy on the executive with a cash surrender value of $1.9 million and
$1.7 million, respectively, at January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002, which is included in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Effective March 4, 2004, the Company
has borrowed against this cash surrender value of this policy.

In addition, for a period of 24 months following the executive’s death, the Company will have a
right of first refusal to purchase any common shares of the Company owned by the executive at
the time of his death if his estate elects to sell such common shares. The Company would have
the right to purchase such common shares on the same terms and conditions as the estate proposes
to sell such common shares.

Segment Reporting
SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,

establishes standards for the manner in which public enterprises report information about
operating segments, their products and the geographic areas where they operate.
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The Company manufactures and markets comfort footwear for at-and-around-the-home. The
Company considers its “Barry Comfort” at-and-around-the-home comfort footwear group in
North America and Europe as its two operating segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are substantially similar to those described in
Note 1, except that the segment financial information has been prepared using certain
management reports, which by their very nature require estimates. In addition, certain items from
these management reports have not been allocated among operating segments. Some of the more
significant items include costs of certain administrative functions, current and deferred income
tax expense (benefit) and deferred tax assets (liabilities), and in some years, certain operating
provisions.

Net sales, and net property, plant and equipment, have been allocated to geographic areas based
upon the location of the Company’s operating unit.

2003 2002 2001
Net Sales
United States/North America $113,881 109,196 118,946
France 9.074 9,786 10,345
United Kingdom 182 42 70
$123.137 119,024 129,361
2003 2002
Net Property, Plant and Equipment
United States 3,637 5,240
Mexico 5,114 5,052
Other 618 618
9,369 10,910
January 3, December 28, December 29,
2004 2002 2001
Net Sales by Product Line
At-and around-the-home comfort footwear $123,137 119,024 129,361

In 2003, one customer accounted approximately for 25%, a second customer for 11%, and a third
customer accounted for 10% of the Company’s net sales. In 2002, one customer accounted for
approximately 26% and a second customer accounted for approximately 11% of the Company’s
net sales. In 2001, one customer accounted for approximately 22% and a second customer
accounted for approximately 10% of the Company’s net sales.
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Barry Comfort

North Total
January 3, 2004 America Europe ota
Net sales $113,881 9,256 123,137
Depreciation and amortization 1,547 215 1,762
Interest income
Interest expense 1,343 75 1,418
Restructuring and asset
impairment charges 200 200
Goodwill impairment charge 2,363 2,363
Gross profit 41,627 1,083 42,710
Pre-tax loss (5,874) (3,409) (9,283)
Additions to property, plant
and equipment 1,555 107 1,662
Total assets $59,591 1,690 61,280
Barry Comfort
North
December 28, 2002 America Europe Total
Net sales $109,196 9,828 119,024
Depreciation and amortization 1,570 209 1,779
Interest income 40 40
Interest expense 1,318 68 1,386
Restructuring charges, net 2,301 536 2,837
Gross profit 40,159 1,268 41,427
Pre-tax loss (10,003) 2,313) (12,316)
Additions to property, plant
and equipment 2,226 147 2,373
Total assets-continuing
operations $79.991 6,115 86,106
Total assets-discontinued
operations 1.532
Total assets 7,638
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Barry Comfort

North
December 29, 2001 America Europe Total

Net sales $118,946 10,415 129,361
Depreciation and amortization 1,453 221 1,674
Interest income 242 — 242
Interest expense 1,277 68 1,345
Restructuring charges (118) — (118)
Gross profit 47,078 2,101 49,179
Pre-tax earnings (loss) (4,260) (1,239) 3,021
Additions to property, plant

and equipment 990 196 1,186
Total assets-continuing

operations $ 7,304 7,142 84,446
Total assets-discontinued

operations 4,166

Total assets

Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges

88,012

During 2003, the Company closed the Goldsboro warehouse facility and upon closure, evaluated
the carrying value of this facility and recognized a $200 impairment loss, which was realized
upon sale of the facility in the second quarter, 2003. The Company recorded goodwill

impairment loss on its 80% owned Fargeot subsidiary (see Note (1)(f)).

Accruals Accruals
December 28, Charges Non-cash Paidin January 3,
2002 in 2003 Adjustment write-offs 2003 2004
s

Employee separations  § 1,530 — — — 1,356 174
Noncancelable leases 208 — — — 208 _—
Total restructuring 1,738 — —_ — 1,564 174
Goodwill impairment — 2,363 — 2,363 — —
Asset impairments — 200 — 200 — —
Total $ 1,738 2,563 — 2,563 1,564 174

The full impact of the $2,563 impairment loss on 2003 from the actions noted above decreased
earnings by approximately $.26 per share.

During 2002, the Company engaged in several actions related to reorganization efforts to improve
profitability. One action in the first quarter resulted in the coordinated transfer of cutting
operations from the U.S. to Mexico and a reduction in sewing operations in Nuevo Laredo,
Mexico. This action resulted in the reduction of 354 positions at a cost of $727. Other actions in
the third and fourth quarters were taken to restructure staff support of sales and operations, which
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impacted 9 employees at a cost of $938. In the fourth quarter, the Company announced the
decision to close the Goldsboro distribution center in early 2003, impacting 53 positions at a cost
of $601. In the same year, the Company announced the decision to close the Wales distribution
center in early 2003, impacting 22 positions at a cost of $178. The closure of the Wales facility
also resulted in recognition of $208 in future lease obligation losses as well as $150 in asset
impairment losses. The closure of the Wales distribution center ended direct selling activities in
Europe. At year-end 2002, the Company also recognized an asset impairment loss for $523 on net
fixed assets, trademarks, and patents associated with its discontinued operations.

Accruals Accruals
December 29, Charges Non-cash Paidin December 28,
2001 in 2002 Adjustment write-offs 2002 2002
s

Employee separations  $ 346 2,444 34 — 1,294 1,530
Noncancelable leases _— 208 — — — 208
Total restructuring 346 2,652 34 — 1,294 1,738

Asset impairment = 673 — 673 — —
Total $ 346 3325 34 673 1,294 1,738

After an income tax benefit of $131, 2002 actions decreased earnings by $2,228, or approximately 23
cents per share.

In 2001, the Company reported favorable adjustments of approximately $420 related to settlement of
lease cancellations of facilities and cutting equipment accrued during year 2000. In October 2001, the
Company announced a decision to close its molding operations in Texas and relocate those activities to

Nuevo Laredo, Mexico. The plan primarily included a reduction of 70 employees and related severance
costs of $172.
Accruals Accruals
December 30, Charges Non-cash Paidin December 29,
2000 in 2001 Adjustment write-offs 2001 2001
s

Employee separations  $ 527 172 2 — 355 346
Noncancelable leases 499 _40 (422) — 117 —
Total restructuring 1,026 212 (420) — 472 346
Asset impairments — _9 — 90 — —
Total $ 1,026 302 420 90 472 346

After an income tax expense of $42, 2001 actions increased earnings by $76 or $.01 per share.
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Product Warranties for Discontinued Operations

Accruals and expenditures associated with the Company’s warranties provided on key components in
selected commercial market thermal products are recapped as follows:

Net Charges
Accruals and Accruals
December 28, adjustments  Expenditures Janunary 3,
2002 in 2003 in 2003 2004
Warranty Accrual $ 328 (257) 11 _0
Accruals Accruals
December 29, Net Chargesin Expenditures December 28,
2001 2002 in 2002 2002
Warranty Accrual $ 200 619 491 328

In 2003, the thermal products subsidiary assets were sold and all liabilities assumed by the buyer
in the purchase of those net assets, including existing product warranty obligations.

Sale of Vesture Net Assets

In 2003, the Company sold certain assets of its Vesture thermal product subsidiary. Vesture
assets sold in the transaction included furnishings, trade fixtures, equipment, raw material and
finished products inventories, books and records (including supplier and customer lists),
Vesture’s rights under certain contracts and agreements, patents and trademarks used by Vesture,
and trade accounts receivable of Vesture arising after March 29, 2003. The Company retained
Vesture’s account receivables as of March 29, 2003. As consideration, the purchaser assumed
specific liabilities and obligations of Vesture and paid the Company a nominal sum of cash, and
provided the Company with a promissory note in the amount of $344, due in December 2004.
The Company has provided a full reserve for the balance due on the note. As additional
consideration for the assets sold, the purchaser committed to remit a specified sum in December,
2004 and make annual payments, through 2007, based upon a percentage of purchaser’s annual
sales of certain products in excess of specific sales thresholds.
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Selected financial data relating to the discontinued operations through the date of closing on
June 18, 2003, follow:

Year - 2003 Year - 2002 Year - 2001

Net sales $1,759 3,546 5,188
Gross profit (loss) 57 (1,654) 1,470
Selling, general and 2,040 3,268 2,825
administrative - expense

Restructuring charges — 523 . L —
Interest expense (income) 104 143 (24)

Loss on sale of certain assets
relating to discontinued .
- operations 223 — —

Loss from discontinued

operations 2,310) (5,588) (1,331
before income tax

Income tax benefit — 1,858 437

Loss from discontinued

operations net of income tax $(2310) 3.730 (894)

(18)  Contingent Liabilities

The Company has been named as defendant in various lawsuits arising from the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of such matters is not expected to have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In October 2001, Vesture received a claim charging that its pizza delivery system infringed on
two United States Patents. In December 2003, the Company settled the pending patent litigation
involving its pizza delivery systems. The settlement resolves all areas of dispute between the
parties and concludes the pending litigation. As part of this settlement, the Company is obligated
to make certain nominal payments, all of which have been accrued at the end of 2003.

(19)  Subsequent Events

The Company is addressing its cumulative losses by taking actions to reduce its operating costs
and simplify its business model. Implementation of the 2004 business plan entails further
restructuring efforts and cost reductions, including curtailment of manufacturing operations in
Mexico and personnel reductions in selling, general and administrative departments.

In early 2004, the Company closed remaining sewing operations in Nuevo Laredo, reduced
sewing operations in two other sewing plant locations in Mexico, and reduced support staff in the
corporate offices. These actions resulted in termination of associates with severance costs
approximating $1.2 million incurred in the first quarter of 2004.

In early 2004, the Company took action to effectively freeze pension benefits under its ARP and
SRP plans effective as of April 1, 2004, and requested permission from the Internal Revenue
Service to defer 2004 estimated payments. As a result of the pension plan benefit freeze, the
Company will report a curtailment loss approximating $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2004.
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On March 29, 2004, the Company entered into a new financing agreement (the “CIT Facility™)
with CIT. On March 30, 2004, the Company borrowed under the CIT Facility approximately
$10.3 million to repay all outstanding indebtedness under the Revolver and related charges, and
the Revolver was terminated. In addition, on that date, the Company borrowed approximately
$2.3 million under the CIT Facility to repay all outstanding indebtedness to the 9.7% noteholder
and that agreement was terminated.

The CIT Facility provides the Company with advances in a maximum amount equal to the lesser
of (i) $35 million or (ii) a Borrowing Base (as defined in the CIT Facility). The CIT Facility is a
discretionary facility which means that CIT is not contractually obligated to advance the
Company funds. The Borrowing Base, which is determined by CIT in its sole discretion, is
determined on the basis of a number of factors, including the amount of the Company’s eligible
accounts receivable and the amount of the Company’s qualifying inventory, subject to the right of
CIT to establish reserves against availability as it deems necessary. The CIT Facility also
includes a $3 million subfacility for the issuance of letters of credit that is counted against the
maximum borrowing amount discussed above.

The Company’s obligations under the CIT Facility are secured by a first priority lien and
mortgage on substantially all of the Company’s assets, including accounts receivable, inventory,
mtangibles, equipment, intellectual property and real estate. In addition, the Company granted to
CIT a pledge of the stock in the Company’s U.S wholly-owned subsidiaries. The subsidiaries
have guaranteed the Company’s indebtedness under the CIT Facility.

The Company is reassessing long-lived assets involved in its manufacturing operations, and
expects to incur and recognize an impairment loss of approximately $6 million related to the
assets involved in those functions.

On April 1, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to close all Mexican
manufacturing operations in 2004. The net book value of the long lived assets impacted by this
decision approximate $7.2 million. These assets include property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets including the 2002 Duty Acceleration action. As a result, there will be an
impairment loss of approximately $6.0 million as well as accelerated depreciation expense over
the shortened useful lives of those assets involved in those operations in accordance with SFAS
No. 144.

-66-



The quarterly financial data required to be disclosed in this Item 8 in accordance with Item 302 of
SEC Regulation S-K is provided in the following table:

Quarterly Financial Data

2003 Fiscal Quarter

Net sales

Gross profit

Net earnings (loss)-continuing
Net earnings (loss)-discontinued
Net earnings (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

2002 Fiscal Quarter

Net sales

Gross Profit

Net earnings (loss)-continuing
Net earnings (loss)-discontinued
Net earnings (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

First

$20,378

7,085
(2,954)
(918)
(3,872)
($0.39)
(50.39)

First

$19,352

6,044
(3,076)
(255)
(3,331)
($0.35)
($0.35)

Second

$19,016

6,453
(2,395)
(390)
(2,785)
(80.29)
(30.29)

Second

$15,895

4,736
(4,057)
(687)
(4,744)
($0.50)
($0.50)

Third Fourth
$40,001 $43,742
16,234 12,938
1,456 (15,503)
3 (1,005)
1,459 (16,508)
$0.15 ($1.68)
$0.15 ($1.68)
Third Fourth
$38,619  $45,158
15,522 15,125
983 (2,000)
(781) (2,007)
202 (4,007
$0.03 ($0.41)
$0.03 (30.41)

Total

$123,137
42,710
(19,396)
(2,310)
(21,706)
($2.21)
($2.21)

Total

$119,024

41,427
(8,150)
(3,730)
(11,880)
($1.23)
($1.23)

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

With the participation of the Interim President and Chief Executive Officer (the principal
executive officer) and the Senior Vice President-Finance, Secretary and Treasurer (the principal financial
officer) of R. G. Barry Corporation, R. G. Barry’s management has evaluated the effectiveness of
R. G. Barry’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on that evaluation, R. G. Barry’s Interim President and Chief
Executive Officer and R. G. Barry’s Senior Vice President-Finance, Secretary and Treasurer have

concluded that:

(D information required to be disclosed by R. G. Barry in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
would be accumulated and communicated to R. G. Barry’s management, including its
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure;

2) information required to be disclosed by R. G. Barry in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
would be recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the SEC’s rules and forms; and
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3) R. G. Barry’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K to ensure that material information relating
to R. G. Barry and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to them, particularly
during the period for which the periodic reports of R. G. Barry, including this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, are being prepared.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There were no changes in R. G. Barry’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during R. G. Barry’s fiscal quarter ended January
3, 2004, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, R. G. Barry’s internal
control over financial reporting.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required under Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K to be disclosed in this Item 10
is, except as noted in the following sentence, incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry
Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
May 27, 2004 (the “2004 Proxy Statement”), under the captions “ELECTION OF DIRECTORS,” and
“COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS — Employment Contracts and
Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements.” In addition, information concerning
R. G. Barry’s executive officers is included in the portion of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
entitled “Supplemental Item. Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

No disclosure is required under Item 405 of SEC Regulation S-K.

The Board of Directors of R. G. Barry has adopted charters for each of the Audit Committee, the
Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee, as well as Corporate
Governance Guidelines, in each case as contemplated by the applicable sections of the New York Stock
Exchange Listed Company Manual.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A(10) of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual, the Board of Directors of R. G. Barry has also adopted a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics covering the directors, officers and employees of R. G. Barry and its subsidiaries,
including R. G. Barry’s Interim President and Chief Executive Officer (the principal executive officer)
and Senior Vice President-Finance, Secretary and Treasurer (the principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer). As required by the applicable rules of the SEC and the requirements of Section
303A(10) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, R. G. Barry intends to disclose the
following on the “Investors — Board of Directors” page of its website located at www.rgbarry.com within
the required time period following their occurrence: (A) the nature of any amendment to a provision of its
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that (i) applies to R. G. Barry’s principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions, (ii) relates to any element of the “code of ethics” definition enumerated in Item 406(b) of SEC
Regulation S-K, and (iii) is not a technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendment; and (B) a
description of any waiver (including the nature of the waiver, the name of the person to whom the waiver
was granted and the date of the waiver), including an implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics granted to R. G. Barry’s principal executive officer, principal financial
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officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions that relates to
one or more of the items set forth in Ttem 406(b) of SEC Regulation S-K.

The text of each of the Charter of the Audit Committee, the Charter of the Compensation
Committee, the Charter of the Nominating and Governance Committee, the Corporate Governance
Guidelines and the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, is posted on the “Investors — Board of
Directors” page of R. G. Barry’s website located at www.rgbarry.com. Interested persons may also
obtain copies of the Charter of the Audit Committee, the Charter of the Compensation Committee, the
Charter of the Nominating and Governance Committee, the Corporate Governance Guidelines and the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, without charge, by writing to the Senior Vice President-Finance,
Secretary and Treasurer of R. G. Barry at its principal executive offices located at 13405 Yarmouth Road
N.W., Pickerington, Ohio 43147, Attention: Daniel D. Viren. In addition, a copy of R. G. Barry’s Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 14.1.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information called for in this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry
Corporation’s 2004 Proxy Statement, under the captions “SHARE OWNERSHIP,” “ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS” and “COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.” Such
incorporation by reference shall not be deemed to specifically incorporate by reference the information
referred to in Item 402(a)(8) of SEC Regulation S-K.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

The information called for in this Item 12 regarding the security ownership of certain beneficial
owners and management is incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry Corporation’s 2004 Proxy
Statement, under the captions “SHARE OWNERSHIP” and “COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.”

The information called for in this Item 12 regarding securities authorized for issuance under
equity compensation plans is incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry’s 2004 Proxy Statement,
under the caption “COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS - Equity
Compensation Plan Information.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information called for in this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry
Corporation’s 2004 Proxy Statement, under the captions “SHARE OWNERSHIP,” “ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS” and “COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.”
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service.

The information called for in this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to R. G. Barry
Corporation’s 2004 Proxy Statement, under the captions “AUDIT COMMITTEE MATTERS - Pre-
Approval Policies and Procedures” and “AUDIT COMMITTEE MATTERS - Fees of Independent
Auditors.”

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a)(1) Financial Statements.

The following consolidated financial statements of R. G. Barry Corporation and its subsidiaries
are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K at the page(s) indicated:

Independent AUditors” REPOTL ......oouiiieiiririie ittt e et 35

Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 3,
2004 and December 28, 2002 .....c..ccooiiiiiieriireeiieiirei ettt 36

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
fiscal years ended January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002
and December 29, 2001 ... ettt 37

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and

Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended

January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001 ..........cccovveiveeiirirecnnnnnns 38
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the

fiscal years ended January 3, 2004, December 28, 2002

and December 29, 2001 ...t a s e s 39

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemMents .o vee et e e e e eeeae e eeeereeaens 40-66

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

The following additional financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements of R. G. Barry Corporation and its subsidiaries included in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Schedules not included with this additional financial data have
been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the
consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on
Financial Statement Schedules

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
R. G. Barry Corporation:

Under date of April 1, 2004 we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of R. G. Barry Corporation
and subsidiaries as of January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in
the three-year period ended January 3, 2004, as contained in the fiscal 2003 annual report to shareholders.
These consolidated financial statements and our report thereon is incorporated by reference in the annual
report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 2003. In connection with our audits of the aforementioned
consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related consolidated financial statement schedules
as listed in the accompanying index. These financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement
schedules based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Notes 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company has failed to meet a number of covenants under its Revolving Credit Agreement, has suffered
recurring losses from operations, and has entered into a new financing agreement that does not
contractually obligate the lender to advance funds to the Company. These matters raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these
matters are also described in Note 19. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

KPMG LLP

Columbus, Ohio
April 1, 2004
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Schedule 2
R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
January 3, 2004
Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at charged to Adjustments Balance at
beginning costs and and end of
Description of period expenses Deductions __period
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable:
Allowance for doubtful receivables $ 434,000 226,000 434,000 ! 226,000
Allowance for returns 10,182,000 7,763,000 10,182,000 * 7,763,000
Allowance for promotions 9,648,000 10,505,000 9,648,000 3 10,505,000
$ 20,264,000 18,494,000 20,264,000 18,494,000
Notes:

1. Write-off uncollectible accounts.

2. Represents 2003 sales returns reserved for in fiscal 2002.
3. Represents 2003 promotions expenditures committed to and reserved for in fiscal 2002.
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Schedule 2

R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

December 28, 2002

Column A ColumnB  Column C Column D Column E
” Additions

Balance at charged to Adjustments Balance at

beginning costs and and end of

Description of period . expenses Deductions period

Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: o

Allowance for doubtful receivables $ 302,000 132,000 — ! 434,000
Allowance for returns 8,743,000 10,182,000 8,743,000 2 10,182,000
Allowance for promotions 8,574,000 9,648,000 8,574,000 ° 9,648,000
$ 19,962,000 17,317,000 20,264,600

Notes:

1. Write-off uncollectible accounts.

2. Represents 2002 sales returns reserved for in fiscal 2001.

17,619,000

3. Represents 2002 promotions expenditures committed to and reserved for in fiscal 2001.
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R. G. BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

December 29, 2001

Column A Column B Column C Column D
Additions
Balance at charged to Adjustments
beginning costs and and
Description of period expenses deductions
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 384,000 54,000 136,000
Allowance for returns 5,077,000 8,743,000 5,077,000
Allowance for promotions 8,680,000 8,574,000 8,680,000
$ 14,141,000 17,371,000 13,893,000
Notes:

1. Write-off uricollectible accounts.
2. Represents 2001 sales returns reserved for in fiscal 2000.

3. Represents 2001 promotions expenditures committed to and reserved for in fiscal 2000.
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@)3)

(b)

(©

(@

Exhibits.

Exhibits filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K are attached hereto or incorporated herein
by reference. For list of these exhibits, see “Index to Exhibits” beginning at page E-1.

Reports on Form 8-K.

On December 16, 2003, R. G. Barry Corporation furnished information, under Item 9 of a Form
8-K, regarding the news release issued on December 15, 2003, reporting that its result for the
fourth quarter of 2003 may be lower than anticipated.

On November 26, 2003, R. G. Barry Corporation furnished information, under Item 9 of a
Form 8-K, regarding the news release issued on November 25, 2003, reporting the resignation,
effective December 1, 2003, of Tom Coughlin, Executive Vice President — Sales and Marketing
of R. G. Barry.

On October 31, 2003, R. G. Barry Corporation furnished information regarding the news
release issued on October 30, 2003, reporting operating results for its third quarter ended
September 27, 2003, under Item 12 in a Form §8-K.

Exhibits.

Exhibits filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K are attached hereto or incorporated herein
by reference. For a list of such exhibits, see “Index to Exhibits” beginning at page E-1.

Financial Statement Schedules.

The required financial statement schedules are included in Item 15(a)(2) of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. '
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

R. G. BARRY CORPORATION

Dated: April 2, 2004 By:/s/ Daniel D. Viren

Daniel D. Viren,
Senior Vice President-Finance, Secretary and
Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Name Capacity Date
/s/ Gordon Zacks* Senior Chairman of the Board and April 2, 2004
Gordon Zacks Director
/s/ Thomas M. Von Lehman* Interim President and Chief Executive April 2, 2004
Thomas M. Von Lehman Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Christian Galvis* Executive Vice President - Operations, April 2, 2004
Christian Galvis President - Operations of Barry Comfort

Group and Director
/s/ Daniel D. Viren Senior Vice President - Finance, April 2, 2004
Daniel D. Viren Secretary and Treasurer (Principal

Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer) and Director

{8/ Philip G. Barach* Director April 2, 2004
Philip G. Barach

/s/ David P. Lauer* Director April 2, 2004
David P. Lauer

/s/ Roger E. Lautzenhiger* Director April 2, 2004
Roger E. Lautzenhiser

/s/ Janice Page* Director April 2, 2004
Janice Page

/s/ Edward M. Stan* Director April 2, 2004
Edward M. Stan

/s/ Harvey A. Weinberg* Director April 2, 2004
Harvey A. Weinberg
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* By Daniel D. Viren pursuant to Powers of Attorney executed by the directors and executive officers
listed above, which Powers of Attorney have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

By:_/s/ Daniel D. Viren
Daniel D. Viren
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Exhibit No.

2.1

22

23

3.1

32

3.3

R. G. BARRY CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 3, 2004

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated

July 22, 1999, between Mr. Thierry
Civetta, Mr. Michel Fargeot, FCPR
County Natwest Venture France, SCA
Capital Prive-Investissements, Hoche
Investissements, and SA Capital Prive,
parties of the first part, and R. G. Barry
Corporation (“Registrant™) and
Escapade, S.A., parties of the second
part

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of
May 14, 2003, by and among RGB
Technology, Inc. (formerly known as
Vesture Corporation), Registrant and
Vesture Acquisition Corp.

First Amendment to Asset Purchase
Agreement, dated December 29, 2003,
by and among RGB Technology, Inc.
(formerly known as Vesture
Corporation), Registrant and Vesture
Corporation (formerly known as Vesture
Acquisition Corp.)

Articles of Incorporation of Registrant
(as filed with Ohio Secretary of State on
March 26, 1984)

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation of Registrant
Authorizing the Series I Junior
Participating Class B Preferred Shares
(as filed with the Ohio Secretary of State
on March 1, 1988)

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Registrant (as filed with the Ohio
Secretary of State on May 9, 1988)

E-1

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended October 2, 1999 (File
No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated and filed
July 2, 2003 (File No. 1-8769)

Filed herewith

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(a)(i) to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1988 (File
No. 0-12667) (“Registrant’s 1988
Form 10-K”)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(a)(1) to Registrant’s 1988
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(a)(i) to Registrant’s 1988
Form 10-K



Exhibit No.

Description

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation of Registrant (as filed
with the Ohio Secretary of State on

May 22, 1995)

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of
Incorporation of Registrant (as filed with
the Ohio Secretary of State on
September 1, 1995)

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of
Incorporation of Registrant (as filed with
the Ohio Secretary of State on

May 30, 1997)

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation of Registrant
Authorizing Series [ Junior Participating
Class A Preferred Shares (as filed with
the Ohio Secretary of State on

March 10, 1998)

Articles of Incorporation of Registrant
(reflecting amendments through
March 10, 1998) [for purposes of SEC
reporting compliance only — not filed
with the Ohio Secretary of State]

Regulations of Registrant, as amended

Revolving Credit Agreement, made and
entered into to be effective on
December 27, 2002, by and between
Registrant and The Huntington National
Bank

First Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2003,
by and between Registrant and The
Huntington National Bank

E-2

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(b) to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 30, 1995 (File
No. 1-8769) (“Registrant’s 1995 Form
10-K™)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(c) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(h)(6) to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8,
filed June 6, 1997 (Registration No.
333-28671)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(a)(7) to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 3, 1998 (File No.
1-8769) (“Registrant’s 1997 Form
10-K”)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(a)(8) to Registrant’s 1997
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3(b) to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 2, 1988 (File No.
0-12667)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated and filed
January 9, 2003 (File No. 1-8769)
(“Registrant’s January 2003

Form 8-K™)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 29, 2003 (File

No. 1-8769)
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Exhibit No.

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

Description

Second Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of September 1,
2003, by and between Registrant and
The Huntington National Bank

Third Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of September 15,
2003, by and between Registrant and
The Huntington National Bank

Fourth Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of January 22,
2004, by and between Registrant and
The Huntington National Bank

Fifth Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of March 10, 2004,
by and between Registrant and The
Huntington National Bank

Revolving Credit Note, dated
December 27, 2002, issued by Registrant
to The Huntington National Bank

Security Agreement, dated

December 27, 2002, executed by
Registrant in favor of The Huntington
National Bank, as collateral agent for
The Huntington National Bank and
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company

Conditional Consent Agreement, made
as of December 27, 2002, by and among
Registrant and Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company

Note Agreement, dated July 5, 1994,
between Registrant and Metropolitan
Life Insurance Company

Letter, dated July 16, 1999, from
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company to
Registrant in respect of loan agreement
dated July S, 1994

E-3

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated and filed
September 3, 2003 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form §-K, dated September
19, 2003 and filed September 22,
2003 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form §8-K, dated and filed
January 26, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated and filed
March 11, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)
(“Registrant’s March 11, 2004 Form
8-K”)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s January
2003 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.3 to Registrant’s January
2003 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference 1o
Exhibit 99.4 to Registrant’s January
2003 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(t) to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3,
filed July 21, 1994 (Registration
No. 33-81820)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 3, 1999 (File No.
1-8769)




Exhibit No.

Description

4.12

4.13

9.1

9.2

*10.1

©*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

Rights Agreement, dated as of
February 19, 1998, between Registrant
and The Bank of New York, as Rights
Agent

Loan Agreement, dated as of
January 21, 2000, among Banque
Tarneaud, S.A., Banque Nationale de
Paris, and Escapade, S.A.

Zacks-Streim Voting Trust and
amendments thereto

Documentation related to extension of
term of the Voting Trust Agreement for
the Zacks-Streim Voting Trust

R. G. Barry Corporation Associates’
Retirement Plan (As Amended and
Restated Effective January 1, 1997)

Amendment No. 1 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Associates’ Retirement Plan
(amended and restated effective

January 1, 1997, and executed on
December 31, 2001)

Amendment No. 2 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Associates’ Retirement Plan
(amended and restated effective

January 1, 1997, and executed on
December 31, 2001) for the Economic
Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation
Act of 2001

Amendment No. 3 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Associates’ Retirement Plan
(amended and restated effective

January 1, 1997, and executed effective
March 31, 2004)

E-4

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated March 13,
1998 and filed March 16, 1998 (File
No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 1, 2000 (File No.
1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 9 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

. year ended January 2, 1993 (File

No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 9(b) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 29, 2001 (File
No. 1-8769) (“Registrant’s 2001 Form
10-K”)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 2002 (File
No. 1-8769) (“Registrant’s 2002 Form
10-K™)

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s 2002
Form 10-K

Filed herewith




—_—

Exhibit No.

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.10

*10.11

*10.12

*10.13

Description

R. G. Barry Corporation Supplemental
Retirement Plan Effective
January 1, 1997

Amendment No. 1 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Supplemental Retirement
Plan Effective January 1, 1997
(Executed effective as of May 12, 1998)

Amendment No. 2 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Supplemental Retirement
Plan Effective January 1, 1997
(Executed effective as of

January 1, 2000)

Amendment No. 3 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Supplemental Retirement
Plan Effective January 1, 1997
(Executed effective as of March
31,2004)

Employment Agreement, dated
July 1, 2001, between Registrant and
Gordon Zacks

Confidential Separation Agreement,
dated March 10, 2004, by and between
Registrant and Gordon Zacks

Agreement, dated September 27, 1989,
between Registrant and Gordon Zacks

Amendment No. 1, dated as of
October 12, 1994, between Registrant
and Gordon Zacks

Amended Split-Dollar Insurance
Agreement, dated March 23, 1995,

between Registrant and Gordon B. Zacks -

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 1, 2000 (File No.
1-8769) (“Registrant’s January 2000
Form 10-K™)

Incorporated here in by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s January
2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s January
2000 Form 10-K

Filed herewith.

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s 2001
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s March 11,
2004 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 28.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October
11, 1989, filed October 12, 1989 (File

. No. 0-12667)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 5 to Amendment No. 14 to
Schedule 13D, dated J anuary 27,
1995, filed by Gordon Zacks on
February 13, 1995

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(h) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K




Exhibit No.

Description

*10.14

*10.15

*10.16

*10.17

*10.18

*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

10.22

*10.23

R. G. Barry Corporation 1988 Stock
Option Plan (Reflects amendments
through May 11, 1993)

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of incentive
stock options pursuant to the R. G. Barry
Corporation 1988 Stock Option Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of non-

- qualified stock options pursuant to the

R. G. Barry Corporation 1988 Stock
Option Plan

Annual Incentive Program (in effect
beginning with fiscal year ended
December 29, 2001)

R. G. Barry Corporation Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (Reflects
amendments and revisions for stock
dividends and stock splits through
May §, 2003)

R. G. Barry Corporation 1994 Stock
Option Plan (Reflects stock splits
through June 22, 1994)

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of incentive
stock options pursuant to the R. G. Barry
Corporation 1994 Stock Option Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of non-
qualified stock options pursuant to the
R. G. Barry Corporation 1994 Stock
Option Plan

[INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]
Executive Employment Agreement,

effective as of January 5, 2004, between
Registrant and Christian Galvis

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(r) to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8,
filed August 18, 1993 (Registration
No. 33-67594)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(k) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(1) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K '

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
ended June 28, 2003 (File No. 1-
8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(q) to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8,

© filed August 24, 1994 (Registration

No. 33-83252)
Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

[(INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

Filed herewith




Exhibit No.

Description

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

*10.27

*10.28

*10.29

*10.30

*10.31

*10.32

*10.33

*10.34

Restricted Stock Agreement, effective as
of January 4, 1998, between Registrant
and Christian Galvis

R. G. Barry Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan As Amended and
Restated (Effective as of

September 1, 1995)

Amendment No. I to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Deferred Compensation
Plan (Effective as of March 1, 1997)

Amendment No. 2 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Deferred Compensation
Plan (Effective as of December 1, 1999)

Amendment No. 3 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Deferred Compensation
Plan (Effective as of December 1, 1999)

Amendment No. 4 to the R. G. Barry
Corporation Deferred Compensation
Plan (Effective as of February 21, 2004)

R. G. Barry Corporation Stock Option
Plan for Non-Employee Directors
(Reflects share splits and amendments
through February 19, 1998)

R. G. Barry Corporation 1997 Incentive
Stock Plan (Reflects amendments
through May 13, 1999)

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of incentive
stock options pursuant to the R. G. Barry
Corporation 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with the grant of non-
qualified stock options pursuant to the
R. G. Barry Corporation 1997 Incentive
Stock Plan

R. G. Barry Corporation 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan

—

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(s) to Registrant’s 1997
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(v) to Registrant’s 1995
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to Registrant’s January
2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s 2001
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.24 to Registrant’s 2002
Form 10-K

Filed herewith

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(x) to Registrant’s 1997
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, filed June 18,
1999 (Registration No. 333-81 105)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.24 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, filed June 14,
2002 (Registration No. 333-90544)




Exhibit No.

Description

*10.35

*10.36

*10.37

*10.38

*10.39

*10.40

*10.41

*10.42

*10.43

*10.44

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with grant of incentive
stock options pursuant to the R. G. Barry
Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used
in connection with grant of non-qualified
stock options pursuant to the R. G. Barry
Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of
May 13, 1999, between Registrant and
Gordon Zacks

Restricted Stock Agreement, effective as
of March 23, 2000, between Registrant
and Christian Galvis

Executive Employment Agreement,
effective as of June 5, 2000, between
Registrant and Daniel D. Viren

First Amendment to Executive
Employment Agreement, effective as of
June 5, 2003, between Registrant and
Daniel D. Viren

Executive Employment Agreement,
effective as of January 5, 2004, between
Registrant and Harry Miller

Change in Control Agreement, effective
as of January 4, 2001, between Donald
Van Steyn and Registrant

Consulting Services Agreement,
effective as of January 1, 2000, between
Registrant and Florence Zacks Melton

Agreement, dated February 7, 1952, as
amended by Agreement of Amendment
dated September 18, 1961, a Second
Amendment dated April 15, 1968 and a
Third Amendment dated

October 31, 2000, between Registrant
and Florence Zacks Melton

E-8

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.30 of Registrant’s 2002
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.31 of Registrant’s 2002
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 3, 1999 (File No. I-
8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 1, 2000 (File No.
1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.29 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Filed herewith

Filed herewith

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.31 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 to Registrant’s
December 2000 Form 10-K




Exhibit No.

10.45

10.46

*10.47

*10.48

*10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

Description

Agreement, dated July 11, 2001,
between Registrant and S. Goldberg &
Co., Inc.

License Agreement, effective as of
January 7, 2003, among Registrant,
R. G. Barry International, Inc., Barry
(G.B.R. Limited) and GBR Limited

Executive Employment Contract, dated
March 10, 2004, between Registrant and
Thomas M. Von Lehman

Amendment to Executive Employment
Contract, dated March 29, 2004,
between Registrant and Thomas M. Von
Lehman

Stock Option Agreement, dated March
10, 2004, between Registrant and
Thomas M. Von Lehman

Letter Agreement, dated February 20,
2004, between R. G. Barry Corporation
and The Meridian Group

Factoring Agreement, dated March 29,
2004, between Registrant and The CIT
Group/Commercial Services, Inc.

Letter of Credit Agreement, dated March
29, 2004, between Registrant and The
CIT Group/Commercial Services, Inc.

Grant of Security Interest in Patents,
Trademarks and Licenses, dated March
29, 2004, between Registrant and The
CIT Group/Commercial Services, Inc.

Equipment Security Agreement, dated
March 29, 2004, between Registrant and
The CIT Group/Commercial Services,
Inc.

Inventory Security Agreement, dated
March 29, 2004, between Registrant and
The CIT Group/Commercial Services,
Inc.

E-9

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(b) to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated January 7,
2002 and filed January 8, 2002 (File
No. 1-8769)

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.46 to Registrant’s 2002
Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s March 11,
2004 Form 8-K

Filed herewith

Filed herewith

Filed herewith

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated March 29, 2004 and
filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated March 29, 2004 and
filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.3 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated March 29, 2004 and
filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated March 29, 2004 and
filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.5 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated March 29, 2004 and
filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 1-8769)




Exhibit No. Description Location

14.1 R.G Barry Corporation Code of Business Filed herewith
Conduct and Ethics

21.1 Subsidiaries of Registrant Filed herewith

231 Consent of Independent Certified Public Filed herewith
Accountants

24.1 Powers of Attorney Executed by Filed herewith
Directors and Executive Officers of
Registrant

3141 Rule 13a - 14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification Filed herewith

(Principal Executive Officer)

31.2 Rule 13a - 14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification Filed herewith
(Principal Financial Officer)

32.1 Section 1350 Certification (Principal Filed herewith
Executive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer)

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

E-10




R.G. BARRY CORPORATION
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